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To provide an appropriation to the department of commerce for homeless shelter grants. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments # 1-8 

 
Vice Chairman O. Larsen: Opens the hearing on SB 2263 
 
Senator Kathy Hogan, District 21. Introduced SB 2263. Testifying in favor of SB 2263. 
Please see Attachment #1 for testimony.  
 
(02:33-09:15) Christina Sambor, on behalf of the North Dakota Coalition for Homeless 
People. Testifying in favor of SB 2263. Please see Attachment #2 for testimony.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: Statistically with the data, where did they go? Where did these 7,000 
people/beneficiaries go? 
 
Christina Sambor: One of the other impacts from the cut in funding, to be quite frank with 
the committee, when you see this kind of drop off in direct services, it also cuts off the ability 
for us to collect data and to do those kind of surveys. I can say as a resident of Bismarck I 
think we have seen an increase of visible homelessness in the community. When we look at 
lacking sufficient funding to even provide nights of shelter we also lack staff that can go out 
and study and find out what is happening to the people we are not able to serve.  
 
Senator Anderson: When one of our homeless shelters in Bismarck closed they had one of 
the individuals they were helping on the news. And he had been in subsidized rental property 
for 17 years. How do we prevent that from happening when we are putting money into these 
homeless shelter? I am not exactly sure why they closed. This is an example on why the 
public is not real crazy about supporting people in homeless shelters like that.  
 
Christina Sambor: It’s a complex question and I think that there are certain people in our 
society that will need help longer than I think a lot of people are comfortable seeing us sustain 
funding. I think about people in our own families sometimes that will always need our help 
and support. What we see sometimes is that there are people in our communities that need 
that same level of support but don’t have a family unit to provide that. I think that a lot of the 
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policy issues that have been taken up by this committee this session and looking at improving 
access to more intensive supports and improving access to peer support and things that can 
help people make a difference in their lives. I think that one of the catch 22’s is if we just 
provided just enough funding to just keep shelters opens and not do some of the additional 
case work. I can speak from my experience with YouthWorks, when we work with youth 
between the ages of 18-22 that are struggling with homelessness that goes along with 
intensive case management. We are working with that youth to make positive and permanent 
connections, education, vocational, and employment options so that we can get involved 
early so that we don’t end up with someone who is chronically homeless for the rest of their 
lives. We have Cody Shuler here from the Fargo/Moorhead coalition that can speak better to 
your concern.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I would be interested to know whether or not that individual had mental 
illness or a substance abuse issue, any number of those kinds of things because on average 
families receive one and a half months of assistance. There is a really good project going on 
with a partnership between the YWCA and Lutheran Church of the Cross, and they are doing 
apartments. The church has made available part of their property to build this structure on. I 
actually drove by to pay attention to it and its coming along great but it’s for people who are 
transitioning out of the supports of the Y and put into secure housing. There will be services 
available and will allow them to move on eventually to their own independence. A lot of the 
facilities that provide sleeping space, don’t want the residents to be there all day. I didn’t 
realize until about 2 years ago at a chamber of commerce event when I talked to the Fargo 
Public Libraries staff what a tremendous issue it is with the homeless in all of the libraries. 
They are sensitive to the problem but they also have issues with what’s happening with that.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Just an example, I took a tour of the Bright Sky apartments and they said 
that they will actually have some people who have that really long term need but then it 
actually ends up cheaper to put them in that supportive housing and allow them to continue 
to drink then it is to utilize some of the more emergency services at a much higher cost. It is 
kind of like providing them primary care versus letting them use the emergency room all the 
time.  
 
Christina Sambor: I think Cody will provide some of that information as well, some of these 
problems are costly no matter how we deal with them. Fargo is doing a great job collecting 
data that shows the cost savings that happens from housing people. I think it’s more the 
exception than the rule that these long term folks that need support over a long period of time 
but Fargo is doing nice work in collecting financial data that shows that those front end 
supports and securing homelessness save an immense amount of money in terms of ER 
visits and incarceration.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: And YouthWorks does a great job by the way.  
 
Senator Clemens: We hear a lot about the workforce problem in North Dakota. I’m sure your 
making efforts during the day to try to encourage some of these people to the workforce 
during the daytime hours. It seems to me that there would be a substantial amount that want 
to work and there are a lot of jobs available.  
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Christina Sambor: My background is with working with YouthWorks and homeless youth so 
what I would like to do is just ask Cody Shuler answer your question when he comes up if 
that is ok. What I can speak to you in terms of YouthWorks programming is that part of the 
federal funding that we get and all the programs we do, is that we set specific goals and work 
towards educational and employment attainment and that is part and parcel of working with 
our program and receiving housing. You have to work with a case manager that is helping 
you set educational goals and understand what you are looking for and want to qualify for 
housing through our program. On our end we are trying to work with people who are young 
and struggling and making sure that we are meeting the immediate need for housing while 
also meeting longer term needs that will help them have a sustainable and happy lifestyle.  
 
(19:30-24:55) Cody Schuler, Executive Director of the Fargo-Moorhead Coalition to 
End Homelessness. Testifying in favor of SB 2263. Please see Attachment #3 for 
testimony.  
 
Senator Anderson: It seems to me that every time the mayor starts a coalition to end 
homelessness the numbers that we count increase and it seems the more services we have 
provided the further backwards we go. 
 
Cody Schuler: The Fargo-Moorhead coalition has been in existence since 1989 and that 
coalition was started by our shelters at that time to better work together. What our coalitions 
have done across the state is connect our services better together to work to find solutions. 
In Fargo, when we as a coalition the better that we work together we have been able to match 
the growth in homelessness and what has happened is by bringing our partners around the 
table we found solutions like creating a medical respite program which has greatly reduced 
millions of dollars in savings in Fargo because there is a place for individuals experiencing 
homelessness after they have been in the ER if they can’t return to shelter because of their 
medical needs there is a place for them to go, rather than longer hospital stays or going back 
on the street. I would say that when we come together in this state what I have seen in 
communities when coalitions form around an issue like homelessness we recognize the issue 
and are able to bring people together to break down barriers and be able to work better 
together.   
 
Senator Hogan: Tell me about the availability of low and moderate income housing because 
I think sometimes access and finding low income housing is a huge barrier isn’t it? 
 
Cody Schuler: I believe that in Fargo we have a lot of available apartments in Fargo but 
many of them are ones that I can’t afford as a full time employee of the coalition. There is a 
lack of affordability. Our section 8 vouchers in Fargo I believe the last time I checked with 
them, we are talking multiple years of a waiting list, up to four years in some cases.  
 
Senator Hogan: Explain what section 8 is and how it works. 
 
Cody Schuler: Section 8 are vouchers provided by the federal government to our housing 
authority that then provides cash rental assistance.  
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Senator Hogan: So if someone was homeless and they couldn’t get subsidy for housing 
they had to wait four years they are going to end up homeless even if they are working 
because they can’t afford the rent.  
Cody Schuler: If your fortunate to be sheltered during that time what we have also learned 
is that statistics show that the longer you are in shelter, the harder it is to provide stable 
housing in the long term.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do you have any sense of how many of the homeless people that are 
served through your coalition, have jobs and are working? 
 
Cody Schuler: I can tell you that we are currently processing the data that was collected in 
October that is going to shed some light on the current population is like. I can tell you that 
in 2015 we believe it was something like 49% of the people experiencing homelessness at 
that time were reporting employment as their main source of income.  
 
(31:35-35:53) Mark Heinert, Homeless Programs Manager at Youthworks. Testifying in 
favor of SB 2263. Please see Attachment #4 for testimony.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: How many of these folks have decided to go to the military? 
 
Mark Heinert: I would probably say 5-10% 
 
Senator Clemens: When you have a person staying at one of your places. Do you show 
them how to get health insurance, job opportunities, access to rides, etc.? Is that being 
offered to people coming in? 
 
Mark Heinert: It is, however we know the longer someone stay in a shelter the more it costs 
and the less effective it becomes. We actually saw from 2016-2018 an increase in stay. Yes, 
we need to have funds to provide that. We are working to survive just like our clients are 
working to survive. Food, clothing, and shelter. We need to put more funds in. We can provide 
mentorship and support, if we had the funding.  
 
(36:45-00:00) MiLinda Turner. Testifying in favor of SB 2263. Please see Attachment #5 
for testimony.  
 
Senator Hogan: How did you connect with Youthworks? 
 
MiLinda Turner: My freshman year of high school my teachers set up a meeting with 
Youthworks for me, and from there I have pretty much worked with all the programs they 
had.  
 
Senator Hogan: So they nurtured you through that transition from high school to adulthood.  
 
MiLinda Turner: Yes. 
 
(42:35-49:17) Obadiah Pipeboy, Testifying in favor of SB 2263. Please see Attachment #6 
for testimony.  
 



Senate Human Services Committee  
SB 2263 
1/22/2019 
Page 5  
   

Senator Hogan: I’m interested in your plan to join the military. How did you get to that 
decision? 
 
Obadiah Pipeboy: When my mom spent some time in prison so I grew up with my Grandpa 
and he was a hardcore marine. If there was one thing I learned from him was to thrive through 
chaos. I’m joining the army mainly because I can’t swim as much as a marine. I’ll be front 
lines infantry then hopefully transfer to a technician job with plumbing. In 10 years from now 
you will Pipeboy’s Plumbing throughout the area.  
 
Senator Clemens: I just want to give you encouragement. I am a veteran I spent two years 
in the Army. I know the Native Americans have a high regard for veterans and you will not 
regret going into the military and I think it will open up a great lane for you whether you stay 
there or go back into civilian life. I appreciate your testimony and just giving you the 
encouragement.  
 
(51:47-53:40) Renae Moch, Director for Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health. Testifying in 
favor of SB 2263. Please see Attachment #7 for testimony.  
 
Senator Hogan: I appreciate that Public Health recognizes that this is an issue. Does your 
Public Health Organization talk about it? 
 
Renae Moch: Just to give you an example, we have, similar to Fargo, Missouri Valley 
Homeless Coalition that’s kind of redeveloping themselves and working to address the issue. 
I know that Minot has a shelter as well. When it comes to planning for the type of facility that 
we need in Bismarck we are kind of all in the planning stage right now to see what we can 
do to address the gaps that have been identified. I know that when we had gone through our 
crisis when the shelter was closed here, we kind of worked with the other cities across the 
state of North Dakota to see what we could do in the interim until Sunrise United Way’s 
shelter had opened. Just kind of collaborating and communicating and keeping that line of 
communication open between all of us is what I have seen.  
 
Senator Hogan: I commend Public Health for being a partner at this table because I think it 
is a Public Health safety issue as well.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: People should be able to come to a place and recognize the value and 
pay it forward.  
 
(55:46-56:27) Amber Ruzicka, United Way. Presenting testimony for Jena M. Gullo, 
Executive Director, Missouri Slope Area Wide United Way. Testifying in favor of SB 2263. 
Please see Attachment #8 for testimony.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: With the changes in priority with the United Way where I am (Fargo) into 
things other than that base of Maslow’s pyramid. I’m interested to know what United Ways 
involvement is or is that in jeopardy at all as you might be looking at changes in the priorities 
in the Bismarck/Mandan area?  
 
Amber Ruzicka: Our priorities have pretty much stayed consistent, and we really just see 
ourselves as a problem solver in our community. So when the shelter closed we felt that this 
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was an opportunity for us to step up along with our coalition to help our community. We are 
also a big player in our back pack program to ensure kids are not going hungry on the 
weekends and making sure they are coming to school ready to learn and able to read. Those 
along with helping our elderly in our community are still a lot of our foundation and what we 
focus on at our United Way? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Closes the hearing on SB 2263 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2263 
1/22/2019 

Job # 31234 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature: Justin Velez 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation to the department of commerce for homeless shelter grants. 
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Senator Hogan: I think this whole situation is directly related to both lowering our jail 
population and an appropriate use of hospitals. I think it’s hard to prove like Free Through 
Recovery how we lower costs in the long run. The trouble is the infrastructure isn’t here as 
well as it is in Free Through Recovery. I looked at those numbers and particularly in the 
mental health and drug abuse issues and the homeless stuff with this population. Also low 
and moderate income housing is really one of the big issues, it’s hard to get access to.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I have become more convinced about housing first as we move through 
things in the last couple of years because if they don’t have a stable place to sleep at night 
then they aren’t going to get launched with a job. There’s also people that there are 
obligations as far as interviews for jobs and applying for any other programs. There is a 
contract in place that a recipient or an applicant for TANF grants understands that there will 
be no additional cash payment for having an additional child under that program. It has been 
extremely effective we have reduced the number of people on benefits by welfare to work, I 
think it’s a great program. If there is any access to other benefits that is being considered in 
some of these cases, there are other requirements for those individuals as well. It also has 
a 20% disregard for maintenance of effort on 20% for people who may have a disability and 
can’t work or someone who is caring for an individual with a disability. The point is that there 
will always be some that cannot work.  
 
Senator Hogan: I have such a large homeless population in my district, when I went door to 
door I was in the gardner and the graver which are simple room occupancy kind of 
apartments where many people with pretty significant either developmental or mental health 
issues, long term chronic illness. The interesting thing to me was, in that one day I ran into 
four people in these two apartments who had been patients at the state hospital when I 
worked there in the late 60’s and early 70’s. I recognized them and they recognized me, but 
they were people with very severe mental health issues. It was fascinating to talk to them 
because they typically went to the salvation army for lunch, two of them were active in the 
mental health social club but they were in and out of homelessness until they got this low 
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income housing subsidy. Many of the people who are served through this are people who 20 
years ago would have been at the state hospital.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I think one of the challenges with this is, you can’t do everything for 
everyone. What amount of money is the right amount of money and what services being the 
right services and I think that you also have this stigma attached with this population 
especially when you do have those long term people who are creating this bad image for the 
scenarios like we heard today? It is a challenge for me, especially like I talked about 
yesterday not understanding that bigger picture on the appropriations side to understand how 
much is enough money and how much is too much money. I don’t know what to do.  
 
Senator Anderson: Unfortunately, I think this business is a bottomless pit. They would use 
as much money as we would give them and they would still have more homeless people. 
Pretty soon they will start coming from other states to take advantage of the services. I travel 
to some big cities and there are lots of people living on the streets and fortunately those 
climates are warmer than here. I just have the feeling that they are better served by the non-
profits and the churches then they are by putting state money into it. We all talk about we 
can save money long-term but that never happens.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The problem is that; we can’t know if it did save money or not because 
we don’t have a control group that has it along with the group who has the effort made. I think 
those young people who were there today, they were so thrilled to be on the senate floor this 
afternoon and excited and proud of the way they presented. How do you get somebody 
launched in a way that is better? There is a lot of space around the state that doesn’t have 
anything like Youthworks. When Ruth Myers closed here we were told there were people 
that were given one-way bus tickets to Fargo so that they could flood our homeless facilities 
because we had more facilities. It becomes kind of a circular pit here.  
 
Senator K. Roers: When the appropriation went down and the grant funding went away, I 
feel like how did we decide which got what money? I feel like the things that we are saying 
are the most successful are the ones that got the no funding and its difficult, I work at a 
hospital so I understand you still have to have the hospital but we all know the preventative 
care is what prevents you from needing the hospital. When you only have so much money 
how do you funnel the money into preventative care and say sorry there's no hospital care.  
 
Senator Hogan: This bill goes to the commerce department, which was a little questionable 
because this was as part of the housing issue.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Of course it was because we thought we had a better chance of getting 
it passed there.  
 
Senator Hogan: The whole issue of housing development because it was a work force issue. 
It’s interesting that this has never been seen as a human service. This has been seen as an 
economic development and housing issue in commerce.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I will slightly disagree because it was definitely seen by a fair number of 
folks that it was a human services issue but it wasn’t going anywhere. If we moved it into this 
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adjacent lane and made it part of the work force and housing needs throughout the state, we 
had a better chance of it being collaborative with that.  
 
Senator Hogan: And this group works very close with the housing finance agency.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It concerns me when I see the chart about the fact that we went from 
98,977 total nights of shelter provided to zero in one year. That’s kind of a big deal to me. Its 
cold out there, and the places that I see like the New Life Center has put a big addition on, 
Churches United had an additional significant space provided and their goal is to help people 
get out of there.  
 
Senator Hogan: When you travel to the south, the homeless population is growing in many 
areas because affordable housing stopped there and many of them have jobs.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Pam Sagness is here so we can move on to other cheery topics.  
 
(13:15) Madam Chair Lee and the Senate Human Services Committee move from 
discussing SB 2263 to SB 2115.  
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Madam Chair Lee: We talked about SB 2263 yesterday so this should be fresh in our mind. 
We wanted to restore the funding that was deleted during our financial down turn last session. 
Just for purposes of discussion, it may not end up at 1.5 million when it gets to appropriations. 
I am not interested in them doing our work of determining what the proper policy is but I think 
that there might be some sympathy for the idea to continue these programs.  
 
Senator Anderson: As I understand this now, there is no money in the budget currently for 
these homeless shelter grants. Is that correct? 
 
Senator Hogan: I think there is $300,000 right now.  
 
Senator Anderson: My personal opinion about this is, I think the homeless business should 
be handled by the churches and the non-profits. I’m not too crazy about putting state money 
into it.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I just want to remind you all of what Senator Tom Fisher said many years 
ago which is; “When you take everyone into your home that needs help in your family and 
you take care of them from the day they are born to the day they die, and you also take in 
the people who need your services but they don’t have a family to take care of them, and 
when everybody else does that too, we will no longer need the department of human services 
and the services they provide.” I think there is some importance to the homeless shelter 
grant, no doubt about that. I think there is more than what the churches and the private sector 
can do in some of these cases but they are a big player in these things. The YWCA is I think 
the biggest one in the state, so there is a lot being done privately along with Churches United 
for the homeless and the new life center in that area.  
 
Senator Hogan: I was really touched by the funeral homes this morning. The families where 
there is no one to even identify and direct the plans and the significant increase in that group, 
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which was another view of the hospital has had someone die or the police picks someone 
up, there is no one there anymore. Its kind of stunning.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Its really a shame.  
 
Senator Hogan: It was directly related to this problem. 
 
Senator Clemens: Just a comment to go along with what Senator Hogan is saying, it seems 
like as our society degenerates all the dominos start falling. That’s all I have to say about 
that.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: To move it forward, I know that the 1.5 million dollars is not do able, but 
I know that prior to coming to session we were able to come together with the non-profit of 
counties. They talked about the men’s shelter in Minot and some of those groups and I was 
able to tour the women’s domestic violence shelter, which was actually a new facility. They 
are actually having a campus which is expanding and I know that these grants and stuff are 
helping them so, it’s my hope to take of half of that budget for now and I know we have 
$300,000 that was on the line item but if we could start with half of that and move it out of 
here at least it will continue to show that we want to help move it forward and be a part of the 
process. Im not for moving it out of here as a do not pass.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: at $750,000? 
 
Senator O. Larsen: Yes, I think that’s my amendment with that. I move to change the amount 
in the bill to $750,000. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Is there a second? 
Seconded by Senator Hogan 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
 
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 Absent 
AMENDMENT ADOPTED 
 
Madam Chair Lee: We have the amended bill in front of us. Do we have someone who would 
like to move forward with the amended bill? 
 
Senator O. Larsen: I motion to move SB 2263 a DO PASS, AS AMENDED, REREFER TO 
APPROPRIATIONS.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Is there a second? 
Seconded by Senator Clemens  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
 
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 Absent  
MOTION CARRIES 5-1 
Senator O. Larsen will carry SB 2263 to the floor.  
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Madam Chair Lee: Closes the hearing on SB 2263.  
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the department of commerce for 

homeless shelter grants. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1 – 9. 

 
Legislative Council:  Levi Kinnischtzke & Sheila Sandness  
OMB: Stephanie Gullickson  
 
Vice-Chairman Krebsbach called the committee to order on SB 2263. 
 
Senator Kathy Hogan: State Senator, District 21, Fargo, North Dakota 
Testimony Attached # 1 – bill introduction. Want to restore half of the funds that were cut. 
The original bill requested $1.5 Million, the Senate Human Service Committee reduced that 
to $750,000 but it’s the intent that the basic structure for the funding be continued to be used 
as it was previously established in the Department of Commerce.   
 
Senator Dever: The Commerce budget is in the House. Is it your intention that the funds in 
this bill be added to that bill? 
 
Senator Hogan: It may be important to leave the money in this bill so we have it when we 
get to conference. Senator Dever: I understand that the bill was amended in Senate Human 
Services to reduce the money. Senator Hogan: To $750,000. 

 
Senator Mathern: The amendment that the House placed on this to reduce this amount.  
The Senate would be sending over a bill that was smaller than they were discussing and I 
am just wondering if this shouldn’t be changed back to the original amount? 
 
Senator Hogan:  Here for committee & myself and the answer will be different for which hat 
I have on. I think I have to say the Committee recommended $750,000. I would want $1.5 M. 
 
Senator Mathern: Why did the committee reduce it? Senator Hogan: I think the committee 
was anxious when this bill was heard that we had sent you all those behavioral health bills. 
Guilt for sending so many bills. 
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Senator Poolman: I’m on the bill, but how are the grants are awarded? Could you just talk 
a little bit about is it a formula, is it block grant, how does it work? 
 
Senator Hogan: I want them to explain that. I don’t want to misrepresent. I have a vague 
idea but I am not the technical expert. 
 
Cody Schuler, Executive Director, Fargo-Moorhead Coalition to End Homelessness;  
Board of Directors, North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People 
Testimony in support of SB 2263 - Attached # 2. (5:26-16:41) 
 
16:47 Senator Bekkedahl: Your housing navigation program is that a statewide program or 
something you implemented in Fargo/Moorhead area alone and is it federal issue? How does 
another area get access to a housing navigation program that you have? 
 
Cody Schuler: It’s a private program funded by United Way of Cass Clay and Presentation 
Sisters. It was started by using evidence based best practices and us as a community 
recognizing that we need more of that kind of programing. This started as a pilot program 
and we’ve had two consecutive years of results to get these kinds of numbers to show what 
that is. Any kind of community could start this kind of program and we could fund it with 
anything from NDHG to any other private funding. There is not a lot of HUD funding 
necessarily that would be available for it, but the pieces that are HUD funded under GERD 
are in line philosophically with that kind of program that we’ve seen at Presentation Partners. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  So the model is there and anyone else can use it? 
 
Cody Schuler: Yes, anyone can use it.  We have all the pieces in place in Fargo. 
 
Senator Mathern: What would it literally take out of this bill as a grant to the Williston 
community to replicate what we have in Fargo? 
 
Cody Schuler: It would take significantly more. The Housing Navigation Program – that 
probably about $250,000, but would like to have ½ million. The problem there is that they 
don’t have any shelter, there has been some resistance to providing shelter. But using the 
Housing First model we are able to move individuals directly from the street into the housing 
and by-pass expensive emergency shelters. Would be preferable if we could build the 
systems. When you look at that need, to fund the homeless services across the state and in 
those rural areas what we really probably need to do is not have $1.5M for the biennium, but 
probably have $1.5 to $2M each year of the biennium to be able to actually fund. In 2013, 
there was $2M for the biennium. We need to ask for more than what was actually requested 
initially.  
 
Senator Dever: Sometimes money funded thru agency is pass-thru.  Does dept. decide how 
the money is distributed or is that done by some other entity? 
 
Cody Schuler:  That selection process is thru DOC (Commerce) how those grants are made 
and that selection process. On our side of it, in fact my agency has never received NDHD 
funds either so I am unfamiliar with answering that question. 
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Shantel Dewald, North Dakota Department of Commerce, Division of Community 
Services. Program Administer for the ND Homeless Grant as well as a few other grants 
we have in our office. We have a scoring criteria that we have set for the ND Homeless grant. 
We fund on a few different categories, need for funding, plan for distribution of funds, 
collaboration efforts with providers and services, applicants’ involvement in their local 
coalition and use of the HMIF system, then the applicants’ involvement in providing services 
for homeless and at-risk of homeless and the use of the Housing First model. We are a pass-
thru agency, so we do not receive administrative dollars.  (21:34-22:27) 

Senator Dever: The different groups apply for the dollars and then you distribute and when 
you’re out, you’re out.   

Shantel Dewald:  We fund based on our fiscal year so it starts July 1, to June 30, and so we 
distribute the funds in that time. We have a competitive grant application round so we receive 
applications from the applicants and then we score and rank them and distribute funds based 
on their scoring.  

Senator Poolman: Do you have maximum amount that you will grant or if someone wants 
$1M dollars, if they score highest do they get what they asked for, how does that work? How 
do you decide who gets what? I understand that you’re ranking them in terms of score but in 
terms of dollar amounts, how do you do that?  

Shantel Dewald: We do have a maximum of $50,000 based on the $300,000 that we were 
given last biennium. That amount was higher previously in previous biennium’s. I think we 
were closer to a max of around $100,000 in prior rounds of funding since that was cut we did 
put a maximum of $50,000.  

Erin Prochnow: CEO, YWCA Cass Clay (24:45-30:44) 
Testimony in support of SB 2263 -  Attached # 3.    

Mark Heinert: Homeless Program Manager, Youthworks Social worker 
Testimony in support of SB 2263 - Attached # 4. (31:37-37:21) 

David Schadegg: Living in the Youthworks housing (37:42-41:12) Testimony in support 
of SB 2263 - Attached # 5. 

41:30 Senator Krebsbach: It seemed to me on p.2 of your testimony you say additionally 
41% of the 19 years old former foster youth are homeless. We tried to deal with this last 
session because we know that when kids are once done with the foster parents, they are 
kind of left on their own. Have you seen any changes since I think we did do something? 

Mark Heinert: There is movement of services for youth after they leave foster care. We have 
not actually seen a reduction though in the number of foster youth currently, however, we 
may see that change as time evolves. There is a lot of cross over within that, there are several 
groups that are over-represented within our organization foster-youth, juvenile corrections 
youth, people of color, members of LGBT community are all over represented within that and 
so I believe there is still more work that needs to be done in order to address the foster care 
challenges.  

Senator Dever: Thanked David and understand that life is hard. I am curious as to whether 
you could give me some sense of how common it is? I know the transitional age is very 
difficult. 
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Mark Heinert:  We see about 1000 youth that are in risk or running away or are homeless. 
On the homeless alone that are over 18, between that age of 18-21 we’re identifying about 
100-200 on each community of Bismarck and Fargo that are coming into our organization. 
We are not able to house all of those, but those are the individuals that we are seeing that 
are within in that demographic. So many like David are young parents. They are youth 
themselves being young adults, but its further complicated by trying to help them be good 
parents themselves and meet the basic needs of their children.  

Senator Krebsbach: What is the average age of the homeless and do most fall in the 
category of 25 and younger, 25 to 50, 50 and over?  

Mark Heinert: Youth and children represent about 40% of the population that was homeless. 
We’ll try to get those exact numbers to you.  

Erin Prochnow: 55% are children at YWCA. So about 750 children and the majority of them 
are school aged children but they range from newborns as we have on average 6 women 
who are pregnant a month in our shelter. So all ages, but usually school age.  
Handed out information sheet. Testimony Attached # 6 

Cody Schuler: Executive Director, Fargo, Moorhead Coalition to End Homelessness. Later 
this month we did a survey in Fargo in particular of the entire population where we were able 
to directly interview around 300 individuals experiencing homelessness. We have some of t 
data which is currently being processed at NDSU. That data is a little bit behind because they 
were closed for a couple of days because of the cold. We will be able to provide you with 
some statistics particular around Fargo and maybe even some statewide data from the 
statewide data base.  
 
Sherrice Roness: Homeless Liaison, Bismarck Public School District, Bismarck, ND 
Testimony in support of SB 2263 - Attached # 7 (46:48-52:49) 
 
Jena M. Gullo, Executive Director, Missouri Slope Areawide United Way, Bismarck, ND  
Testimony in support of SB 2263 - Attached # 8. (53:28-58:55) 
 
Adam Tautkus, living at United Way Homeless Shelter (59:00-1:01:34) 
No written testimony. I’ve been homeless for quite a while I would say and usually living in a 
car because the problem is not always financial, it has a lot to do with credit. I like day labor.  
I came to ND for the oil boom, had a CDL and did some fracking. Well after the fracking I 
hoped I could always rely on day labor. So one night in West Fargo, I parked in a closed road 
drinking with a friend, there went my license. They don’t ask questions they figure I might get 
reckless or something. No they grab you, throw you out the car take your keys and take you 
to jail. I lost my license, my car, my stuff, and so now I have nothing. For a long time because 
I have been homeless for many years I’ve always lived in my cars, and it’s not been a big 
deal, used the gym for showers, but I never didn’t have a car. That is like a security there like 
a lock box. Nobody ever messes with cars your clothes and stuff are safe. Without the vehicle 
there goes your little mobile home. Now you’ve got no options and you’re sleeping outside 
on the grass and now its constantly getting into fights over in Fargo because all I had was 
the clothes on my back. To this day I still don’t have identification. I had to turn down an 
interview at the TSA on Wednesday actually, but I don’t have the documents anymore. They 
are in my car. Basically without United Way, I would literally would be walking around with 
the shirt on my back and I wouldn’t have anything. So, at least I have an address, I can have 
things come to me, so there is a backup there. I am no longer as helpless. There is more 
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walking involved. I went from having everything in a day to nothing and that’s kind of what 
the shelters are for, a backup. All the sympathy I didn’t have before because you’re eating 
right next to a homeless guy who tells you he is homeless, like I am too, but you don’t realize 
that you have all these other things that he needs to work to get. It’s not just as easy as 
getting a license cause now you need a car, insurance, plates, credit. Good luck getting a 
place when you tell them you do day labor. It’s not going to happen. It’s a good short term 
stepping stone, can get you out. 
 
Korey Reece, staying at the YMCA (1:01:45-1:02:51) No written testimony.  
Originally from Texas, to chase the oil and gas. Professionally I do crane and rigging and I 
had a job in Fargo but when I was in Fargo, unfortunately I was staying at YMCA and my 
locker was broken into so I lost my driver’s license, my social security card, my journeyman 
documents, all my key documents that I had to have to take this job and function in it. That 
is what put me in the state of homelessness.  Car was broken into. Thanks to people at the 
United Way. With Jena and people at United Way, it’s hard when you hit bottom. I stand in 
support of this bill, and want to thank everyone at the United Way. 
 
Gary Waswick, living at United Way Homeless Shelter (1:02:56-1:04:38). 
No written testimony. I come to United Way and they asked me to speak. But I came from 
Minot and I hit rock bottom. I called the prison camp the men’s emergency shelter but I had 
a apartment for a while and lost that, and was on the street. Thank God for the United Way 
emergency shelter because I was on the street in October. Now it’s cold out but then it was 
cold and my nickname is Cowboy, and the officer goes you’ve got to move on. So I can move 
on without my suitcase but you want me to. The main thing is you’ve got to stand your ground 
and set goals and don’t give up and have faith. When I came down here I had a very bad 
attitude. I was at Kroll’s having coffee, and the FBI called home.    
 
Senator Krebsbach: Cowboy, could you do me a favor? Could you give me your legal name 
for the record? My name is Gary Waswick. 
 
Lorraine Davis, Native American Development Center (NADC), Bismarck, ND (1:05:24-
) Founder and Executive Director of the Native American Development Center. Testimony in 
support of SB  2263   Attached # 9. 
 
Homelessness comes from poverty and for tribal people as we know historically there is 
intergenerational trauma that has led to indigenous generational poverty.  Today not all of 
our members have adopted the monetary system so those are the things that we work on as 
far as things like community development financial institution. We are an emerging native 
CDFI, which provides consumer loans and mico-enterprise loans. We are not a bank or FDIC 
ran we’re funded by the Department of Treasury. We’re specifically funded to serve Native 
American communities throughout the state of North Dakota. With that not only are we able 
to provide those loans, financial education and counseling is required as part of that. To me 
that is the step going forward along with this permanent support of housing model. But we 
can’t do that unless there is homeless shelter funding. That very first step, if you look at the 
community as a need of continuum of care, the first level is a homeless shelter in a 
community. The second level is transitional housing something like Welcome House or Ruth 
Meiers, United Way would be the example of the emergency shelter. Transitional would be 
the other two. Permanent support of housing would be something that we are pursuing a 
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multi-family housing project working with the tribes. It is unique it’s unprecedented in our state 
of North Dakota. It’s rare in other states. But we can get it done and we’re working with the  
Housing Finance Agency. So by doing that we are able to provide permanent support of 
housing in being able to do that beyond just the financial literacy and counseling would be 
able to do our cultural activities. So we’re actually revitalizing our culture. Which is very 
significant for us because it’s part of the mental health crisis that we’ve been experiencing 
for generations is our culture language being taken away from us, so then we have identity 
crisis. So that is what we are bringing back but at the same time we’re learning and adopting 
mainstream societies way of life. So there is a win-win for everybody in our communities.  
  
Shaydee Pretends Eagle, Native American Development Center (NADC), Bismarck, ND 
No written testimony. (1:08:48-1:10:33) I am 20 years old and I’ve experienced 
homelessness about 5 times. I experience adolescence in homelessness. I can’t thank the 
Native American Development Center and Youth Works for what they’ve done for me and 
help provided for me. There’s no way I would probably have made it out of certain situations 
not without the assistance of these two groups. I was homeless when I was 8 years old, when 
I was 16, when I was 18 and when I was 20. I landed myself in a domestic violence 
relationship in order to stay out homelessness, and as of right now my mother at 53 years 
old, got told she has to be out of her apartment in 5 days during this polar vortex. If you can 
only imagine and have a loved one and see them go through this and to know that you can’t 
really do anything to help them, this is what helps them. This is what them get by and to 
function. I hope you see it from a moral standpoint. Because as human beings that’s what 
we do. We have to help each other.  
 
Senator Krebsbach: Closed the hearing on SB 2263 
 
Chairman Holmberg: The budget for the Department of Commerce is not in the Senate, it’s 
in the House. They have a currently as you’ve been told the current budget consisted of 
$300,000 of this current biennium cut back from the biennium before was pretty drastic, was 
a pretty drastic cutback. The Department of Commerce has 3 as I understand it, 3 areas of 
that deal in homelessness. It has the Homeless Shelter Grant and right now it’s $300,000, 
the House committee is talking about putting it to $1.5 billion but don’t count chickens his 
early. They have the Community Development Shelter Plus Grant plus Care of $750,000 and 
that is federal funds; and they have the Community Development Emergency Shelter Grants 
program at $1.03M and that is federal funds mostly federal funds in a small amount of general 
funds. But those are issues that we don’t have before us so we can’t really do much reacting 
at this time. So, we thank all who came to testify. This committee will certainly be looking at 
the entire picture of homelessness which has this bill. It gets awkward when we have a bill 
over here, that actually is over in the House, but that’s the way life is, we just react to it 
appropriately. We aren’t going to do anything right now today on the bill. I want to thank you 
all for coming out. The weather warmed up for you at least, and that was helpful. 
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Minutes:                                                 1. Proposed Amendment # 19.0816.02001  

Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2263. Roll call 
was taken. All committee members were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative 
Council and Stephanie Gullickson, OMB were also present. We have 8 bills 
coming to us. We are doing the policy bill for DPI tomorrow. we only have 7 
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2263 is a duplicate of the department of commerce for homeless grants bill.    
 
V. Chairman Krebsbach:  moved Amendment # 19.0816.02001. 2nd by 
Senator Robinson.   
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the department of commerce for 
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Minutes: Attachment 1-4 

 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2263,  
 
-3:15Senator Kathy Hogan, District 21, Fargo: (see attachment 1)  
 
3:33-5:40 Janelle Moos, Executive Director of CAWS North Dakota: (see attachment 2)  
 
6:15-8:20 Mark Heinert, Homeless Programs Manager Youth works (see attachment 3-4) I 
brought testimony for myself as well as the testimony from Erin Prochnow, CEO at YWCA Cass 
County.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Further testimony in favor of SB 2263? Any opposed? Hearing none we will close 
the hearing on SB 2263. Committee what are your intentions?  
 
Representative Bellew: I’ll make a motion for a Do Not Pass.  
 
Representative Monson: I will second that.  
 
Chairman Delzer: This is simply because it is in the Commerce Budget. Any discussion for the Do 
Not pass? Hearing none we will take the roll.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:      15        Nay:     2        Absent:   4 
 
Motion Carries Representative Monson will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this meeting.  
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Chair Lee and members of the Human Service Committee, my name is Kathy 

Hogan. I represent District 21 the heart of Fargo. My District is also the home to 

many individuals who experience both intermittent and chronic homelessness. It 

has homeless services including soup kitchens, drop in-centers, transitional 

housing as well as several shelters. 

Prior to the financial crisis of 2015, the funding for homeless shelters had a been 

available in the Department of Commerce. This bill simply restores the funding 

that was cut, and it is the intent that the basic structure for this funding be 

continued as it was previously established. 

Madam Chair, there are several people who will testify on this program and the 

needs of the homeless population in ND. I would be more than willing to answer 

any questions. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2298 

Page 1, line 2, replace "youth" with "children" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "6,000,000" with "1,600,000" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "6,000,000" with "1,600,000" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "youth" with "children" 
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Page 1, line 9, after the period insert "The department is authorized two full-time 

equivalent positions to implement and manage the 1915i Medicaid state plan for 

children." 

Renumber accordingly 
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My name is Christina Sambor, and I am here on behalf of the North Dakota Coalition for Homeless 

People. Since its formation in 1989, NDCHP has been committed to serving North Dakota communities 

across the state, bringing advocacy, education, data collection, and resource development, to our 

membership of over 70 different agencies. I come before you today to advocate for the importance of the 

North Dakota Homeless Grant to the homeless programs in North Dakota and to ask this committee for a 

"do pass" recommendation on SB 2263, which would restore the funding level for the NDHG to $1.SM. 

I have provided you with an informational handout that we have created to illustrate the impact 

of the NDHG. The impacts of the cut in funding during the 2017 legislative session were dramatic, and 

have negatively impacted data collection efforts, service numbers, and the stability of homeless services 

in North Dakota. Erin Prochnow, CEO of the YWCA planned to be here today to share with you some of 

the impacts of the cut in funding on the YWCA. I have submitted her written testimony along with mine 

for the committee's review. The YWCA's experiences highlight the impacts of the 2017 funding cut. The 

YWCA witnessed an 86 % reduction in NDHG state funding between the 2015 and 2017 biennia, and as a 

result, saw a 79% (113 vs 24) reduction in individuals served in homelessness prevention and rapid 

rehousing. As Erin's full testimony will show you, homelessness prevention often involves very modest 

amounts of support provided to someone to help them get through a tough time and avoid losing their 

housing in the process. It is an effective and economical approach. The NDHG is a critical part of providing 

that support. 

As I reflected on what to share with you today, I thought of a dear friend and colleague of mine 

who is a survivor of trafficking, has struggled with maintaining housing, and testified before the legislature 

in the 2017 session. She talked about how proud she was, once she got support and stability in her life, to 

pay taxes, which isn't something that gets most of us jumping out of bed in the morning. I think for her it 

really signaled that she was contributing to society in a way she had never been able to before. I thought 

about the fact that some of the groups we know struggle with homelessness the most are kids who have 

aged out of foster care, and veterans. I thought about a study I read recently that found that the factor 



6'J3 ?J)�� 
t /"2,2)Jq 
i¼:'2.. � .2 

most necessary to making someone vulnerable to human trafficking was a complete lack of a healthy 

support system in their life. All of these thoughts led me to this one: homelessness is not a character issue. 

In my experience, people who struggle with homelessness do not do so because they are lazy or bad 

people. They struggle with homelessness because they experienced significant trauma and developed an 

addiction, they were leaving a violent partner, or they have a mental illness and lacked supportive people 

in their lives. Most of the things that contributed to their homelessness occurred not through bad choices, 

but because they did not enjoy the safety and support that so many of us have. I do think supporting this 

bill is a moment for our state to display the character that I know we possess. We all know that the cuts 

that occurred to many budgets last year were the result of difficult economic times. Happily, we are no 

longer in that position. I sincerely hope that we can see the importance in restoring a very modest amount 

of funding to support vulnerable North Dakotans now that we have more money to go around. 

Lastly, I know many of you in this room care very deeply about improving the state of behavioral 

health services in North Dakota. As part of the effort to improve overall mental health services and 

support for those struggling with addiction, the NDCHP would ask this committee to also consider how 

important it is to restore a sufficient level of support to the efforts to prevent and address homelessness. 

Ensuring people are housed and safe is paramount, and we cannot forget about this important first step 

of improving our behavioral health crisis. Please, support the NDHG and the homeless providers around 

the state today, restore the funding to $1.SM, and recommend a "do pass" on SB 2263. 
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$ 1 .5 million fund for homeless prevention 
and emergency shelter administered by the 
North Dakota Department of Commerce in 
the 2015-201 7 biennium. 

In 2016, over $2million in requests came 
to the ND Department of Commerce. 
$750,000 was available and awarded. 

After nearly being eliminated in the budget 
in the 2017-2019 biennium, the legislature 
appropriated $300,000 for the program. 

Twenty-nine homeless programs and 

domestic violence shelters received state 

grant funding in 2015-17, but the number 

of grant awards fell to eight in 2017 and 12 

in 2018, according to the Department of 

Commerce website. The dollar amount of 

the grants also decreased significantly. 

Bismarck Tribune - January 16. 2019 

If the NDHG is not increased back up to $1.5 million homeless prevention and 
shelter services in North Dakota will continue to be negatively impacted. 

(There are minimal state funds provided as part of an Emergency Solutions Grant federal match) 

1. Current funds ($300,000} for assistance are not 
adequate and regularly run out before the year ends. 

2. Shelter bed utilization has never gone below 
90% during the two biennia the grant has been 
in existence. Most shelters have been at or over 
capacity. 

3. Some communities, such as Fargo, have needed 
to create overflow programs hosted at churches to 
address this constant need. 

4. Many agencies utilize these funds as federal match. 

''Agencies across the state have had to make those tough decisions about whether they're going 
to reduce the number of clients served or whether they're going to reduce the number of services 

provided to those clients," 
-Mark Heinert. manager for homeless programs for Youthworks in Bismarck 
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• E igh t  p rovide rs of emergency she lter for those 
experienc i ng  hous ing  cr i s i s .  

• E ight  p roviders of  emerg e ncy she lter for  wom e n  
exper ienc i ng  h ome lessness d u e  t o  domesti c vio lence .  

• M ore than a d ozen prog ra ms  provid i ng  ass ista n ce 
for p revent ing home lessness .  M a ny of these 
p rogra m s  a re c rit ica l i n  r u ra l  a reas where emergency 
home less services a re l i m ited .  

• F raser, I nc .  a n d  Youthworks /programs i n  youth 
homelessness } .  Those experienc ing  ch ron ic  
home lessness as  a d u l ts often had  the i r  first i n stance 
of  home lessness as  youth . Add ress ing youth 
home lessness can  b re a k  cyc les  and potenti a l ly 
red uce home lessness long term . 

• YWCA of Cass C lay provid i ng  services to wome n  
a n d  ch i l d ren ,  i nc l ud i ng  those experienc ing  domestic 
v io lence .  

• N ew Life Center, serving  men  i n  Fargo for  1 1  0 yea rs .  

• G ladys Ray  She lter and  Vetera ns Drop-i n Cente r, 
often serving the ha rdest to serve. 

• The Homeless M a nagement  I nformation System 
( H M I S )  is N orth Dakota 's federa l ly m a n dated 
d ata base. H M I S  is a l ready under  funded and proper 
fu n ct iona l ity and data i nteg rity cou ld  be 
jeopard ized .  Th i s  i s  concern ing  because  the 
awa rd of federa l  fu nds  a re dependent upon the data 
col l ected in H M I S . 

• S u pportive Services for Veteran Fa m i l ies  th roug h  
Com m u n ity Action Pa rtnersh ip .  

S NAPSHOT STORY FROM YWCA IN FARG O  

A woman served in the program for three months of back rent seven years ago who reached out with a $ 1 , 5 0 0  
donation to the program i n  2 0 1 8 because we helped her. Th is i s  her  story. 

"You  he l ped me a rou n d  seven yea rs ago  with th ree months of rent .  I had  fe l l  on ha rd t imes and  the YWCA he lped 
me.  I p romised myse l f  and the man u psta i rs that  i f  I ever g ot a cha nce to g ive back to the YWCA that I wou l d .  Wel l  
recent ly m y  brothe r  passed away a n d  he was a "penny p incher" .  The m i nute I fou nd  out that I wou ld  b e  com ing  i n  
to some money I knew what  I wa nted t o  do  with it .  I knew that  I wa nted to g ive back to the YWCA for a l l  of the h e l p  
a n d  k i ndness they showed me .  You treated m e  with respect a n d  d ign ity and never j udged me .  Because o f  you r h e l p  
I w a s  a b l e  t o  stay i n  my a p a rtment  for a l l  o f  these yea rs a n d  I have a f u l l  time  j o b  and  a m  doing rea l ly we l l .  I have 
n ever forgotten you a n d  I a lways kee p  the YWCA and  its staff in my p rayers . Thank  you for cari ng  about  me . "  
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Good morning Chairwoman Lee and members of the committee, my name is Erin Prochnow, CEO at 

YWCA Cass Clay. Our agency offers the largest Emergency Shelter serving women and ch i ldren in the 

state of North Dakota and northwestern Minnesota. We have been providing services in our community 

for over 110 years, spending the past 40 years providing emergency shelter and housing services to 

women and their ch i ldren escaping domestic violence and abusive situations. 

If SB 2263 is approved, the North Dakota Hou sing Grant (NDHG) wi l l  help women and fami l ies served 

by YWCA escape abuse, move out of homelessness, and l ive independent l ives. 

Homeless Prevention:  

YWCA supports a ph i losophy of empowerment, aiming to not only provide shelter to the homeless, but 

work to empower women and prevent homelessness altogether. Homeless Prevention Initiatives shou ld 

be incl usive of a variety of supportive housing options and short-term assistance covering basic 

expenses l ike deposits, rent, and uti l ity payments. By helping with these needs, YWCA bel ieves 

homelessness can prevented before it happens. 

Prior NDHG Funding: 

In the last legislative session, funding to support NDHG was reduced by 80% from the previous 

bienni um. Today, YWCA Cass Clay is asking for your assistance in restoring th is funding stream. 
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At YWCA we witnessed an 86% reduction in NDHG state funding between the 2015-2016 and 2017-2018 

bienni ums ($102,150 vs $14,000) and as a resu lt a 79% reduction in individua ls (113 vs 24) served in 

homeless prevention and rapid rehousing. The people that need this assistance are struggl ing to get by 

and often l ive paycheck to paycheck. HPRP is a l ifechanging and effective program that serves people 

through preventative efforts. 

Prevention is Life Changing: 

People l ike Kel ly, who YWCA served seven years ago with three months of renta l assistance, are a good 

example of the power of prevention. Kel ly wrote a note of gratitude to YWCA last fa l l , seven years after 

receiving $1,500 in HPRP assistance. With Kel ly's note was a donation for $1,500. The note read: 

"You helped me around seven years ago with three months of rent. I had fel l on hard times and 

the YWCA helped me. I promised myself and the man upsta irs that if I ever got a chance to give 

back to the YWCA that I wou ld. Wel l  recently my brother passed away and he was a "penny 

pincher". The minute I found out that I wou ld  be coming i n  to some money I knew what I 

wanted to do with it . I knew that I wanted to give back to the YWCA for a l l  of the help and 

kindness they showed me. You treated me with respect a nd dignity and never judged me. 

Beca use of your help I was able to stay in my apartment for a l l  of these years and I have a 

fu l ltime job and am doing rea l ly wel l .  I have never forgotten you and I a lways keep the YWCA 

and its staff in my prayers. Thank you for caring about me." Kel ly, served by YWCA in 2012 

As you can tel l  from Kel ly's story, the HPRP program has proven results, preventing people from 

becoming homeless in the first p lace and often helping women become rehoused as qu ickly as possible. 

In the 2015-2016 bienni um, YWCA was able to serve 113 women and chi ldren through the HPRP 
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program. On average, fami l ies received one and a ha lf months of assistance, on average tota l ing $915 to 

each fami ly  to help with rent or a renta l deposit. Of those served at that time, 87% were sti l l  ma inta ining 

their stable housing three months after receiving assistance. Simply stated, the program is effective, and 

cl ient centered. 

In the past two years, YWCA served 24 women and chi ldren with one month of assistance, on average 

providing j ust over $500 in renta l support. Many more fami l ies cou ld be prevented from becoming 

homeless or rehoused more q u ickly with the funding restored. 

People must be a Priority: 

Our priorities as a state must be to care for the most vu lnerable among us inc luding women and their 

chi ldren escaping unthinkable circumstances. Without these programs, thousands of North Dakotans, 

inc luding women and chi ldren who have been victims of violence wi l l  be homeless. As the state's l argest 

shelter serving women and chi ldren, we know this to be true, in 2018 we served 1,375 women and 

chi ldren and were at or above capacity 60% of the time. 

Please take action today. The more than 120 women and chi ldren being safely sheltered and housed by 

YWCA today, and hundreds of other North Dakotans facing homelessness across the state, are counting 

on you. 

Thank you. 
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Chairwoman Lee and members of the Committee, my name is Cody Schuler, Executive Director of the 

Fargo-Moorhead Coal ition to End Homelessness. I am also a member of the Board of Directors of the 

North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People. I speak today in support of Senate B i l l  2263 concerning 

funding of the North Dakota Homeless Grant (NDHG). 

Over the past three biennia, the North Dakota Homeless Grant (NDHG) has provided vital funds for 

service providers across our state addressing the issue of homelessness. These dedicated service 

providers are not just meeting the immediate needs of those in an emergency housing crisis, they are 

working to prevent and end long-term homelessness. However, the 80% reduction in funds has greatly 

impacted that work in my community and across the state. Shelters in Fargo remain at capacity and 

funds that prevent people from fal l ing into homelessness regularly run short. Over half of those seeking 

prevention assistance are routinely turned away due to lack of funds. 

Based on the annual point in time count required by the US Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, the Wilder Survey of Homelessness, and ongoing emergency shelter data, it is estimated 

that upwards of 1,000 people experience homelessness on any given night in the Fargo-West Fargo 

metro area. This number includes those who are sheltered, unsheltered, and who are homeless but 

"doubled up" with friends, fami ly, or acquaintances. (This is just a snapshot of my community. Due to a 

shortage of outreach efforts across the state, counts in other regions of the state are often inaccurate, 

but reported shelter bed uti l ization remains high statewide.) In many cases emergency shelter is the 

only thing keeping individuals and famil ies from freezing to death during our cold winters. 

NDHG does not just meet emergency needs in shelter, but provides vital prevention do I la rs. Preventing 

homelessness is more cost effective than providing shelter and takes less of a tol l on fami l ies. These 

prevention dol lars are crucial to the work of reducing and ending long-term homelessness. 

Funding homeless services and providing prevention dol lars is the smart way to do the right th ing. The 

Housing Navigation program at Fargo's Presentation Partners in Housing is demonstrating that when 

people who have experienced chronic homelessness are housed with proper supports, not only do they 
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find the human d ignity that comes with having a place to ca l l  home, there is a cost savings to the 

community at large. This program uti l i zes the Housing F irst model and has tracked the use of services of 

20 pa rticipants before and after stable housing. In 2018 th is program demonstrated nearly $320,000 of 

savings to our community. Ad missions to detox services dropped by 92%. Ambulance rides were 

lowered by 88%, a savings of over $130,000 a lone. Emergency room use dropped by 71%, a savings of 

over $136,000. And nights in emergency shelter were reduced by 99%. Th is is one smal l  progra m 

investing in the l ives of people and having a profound impact on those ind ividua ls and on wider med ica l 

and shelter costs savings. I magine the impact that cou ld be made with increased NDHG dol lars across 

the state. 

At a t ime when issues of add iction, recovery, and behaviora l hea lth are on the rise, it is important to 

remember that stable housing is key to addressing a l l  these other concerns. When sleeping in a car, on 

the street, or even in emergency shelter, one cannot address hea lth concerns, addiction, or menta l 

hea lth issues. If we do not provide adequate homeless services in our state, investment in addressing 

these other important issues is lost for a population desperately in need of help. 

In c losing, I want to acknowledge that NDHG funds don't just impact d irect services and ind ividua l l ives. 

These funds are a lso needed for proper data col lection and reporting. Data is a key component in 

preventing and end ing long-term homelessness. Without good data we cannot address gaps in services 

or ensure that we are fund ing programs that have the best outcomes and are making the greatest 

impact. NDHG can ensure that service providers a re properly resourced so agency data qua l ity does not 

suffer. NDHG can a lso a id in ensuring that the perpetua l ly underfunded, federa l ly mandated Homeless 

Management Information System (HM IS) data base is properly functioning for state and federal 

reporting. 

Whi le the causes of homelessness can range from trauma such as job loss, domestic violence, and 

add iction issues, to d isabi l ities and hea lth cha l lenges, the only solution to homelessness is housing. 

NDHG provides critica l  funds that not only help those in crisis find shelter but u lt imately connects 

people to find or remain in housing. Therefore, NDHG is not simply a id or programs, it is part of the 

solution to ending long-term homelessness in North Dakota . 

Testimony on SB 2263 - Cody J. Schuler, FM Coalition to End Homelessness 2 
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My name is Mark Heinert, and I am here today to deliver testimony in support 

of SB 2263. I have been a licensed social worker in North Dakota for 28 years, serving 

runaway and homeless youth for the last 22. I am the Homeless Programs Manager 

at Youthworks, a private, non-profit, youth serving agency serving Runaway and 

Homeless Youth in North Dakota. I am also involved in North Dakota and West 

Central Minnesota's Coordinated Access Referral and Evaluation System (CARES) for 

the homeless, serving as the past chair of the governing board. 

The North Dakota Homeless Grant (NDHG), which began in 2013, has provided 

funding to assist agencies in providing housing and support services for the homeless. 

The funding began with $2 million for the 2013  - 2015  biennium, then provided $1 .5 

million for the 2015 - 2017 biennium. This amount was reduced by 80% to $300,000 

in 2017 - 2019. Youthworks had utilized funding from NDHG to provide housing and 

support services to approximately 60 young adults (age 18 - 21) and their children 

annually from 2013 to 2017. An additional 80 - 100 youth received homeless 

prevention services and other supports. Unfortunately, in the 2017 - 2019 biennium, 

Youthworks did not receive any funds from NDHG to support this mission. 

Youthworks has a history of success raising funds from federal sources which require 

local match. Without the support of the NDHG (or other local funds), Youthworks is 
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in jeopardy of losing upwards of $500,000 in federal grant funds, which are dedicated 

to serving homeless youth. 

As homeless providers coordinate housing and services for the homeless, the 

most vulnerable in our population are served first. This includes the elderly, victims 

of domestic violence, trafficking victims, former foster youth, people with disabilities, 

and all children. One out of every three homeless young adults served by Youthworks 

are former foster youth. 

I encourage you to consider the needs of the most vulnerable in our population 

first. The most cost-effective way of helping vulnerable homeless people is to provide 

supportive housing, which is what Youthworks and other agencies are using NDHG 

funds for. 

"On an annual basis it costs between $12,000 and $25,000 to 

place homeless people in supportive housing. In contrast, it 

costs about $35,000 to $150,000 for the person to remain 

homeless. This is based on the cost of emergency room visits, 

police calls, emergency shelter, food, etc." 

- Former HUD Secretary Shaun Donavon - 2012 

Passing SB 2263 is  a good step towards dealing with the "big picture" of  

homelessness in  North Dakota. We must invest in  providing emergency and 

supportive housing and supports, so that we can help people transition into longer 

term stability. It is the right thing to do both from a humanitarian perspective, but 

also from a fiscal perspective. I therefore urge this committee to recommend a "do 

pass" on SB 2263.  
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My name is Mil inda Turner I am 20 years old. I was born in Louisiana , ra ised in 
Georgia , and I moved to Fargo back in 2012. I enjoy helping others and hanging out with 
fr iends. I'm working full time right now at a Optio solutions - it's a call center. The most 
important thing in my life would be my family and pets. My future goals are to start school 
for social work and open an ice cream shop someday. 

I worked really hard to separate myself from negative family patterns. I focused on 
school and getting ahead in l ife, and finished high school early. I have my own apartment 
and enjoy living on my own and supporting myself . I 'm working on building a career in a 
social work related field so that I can help others the way that others have helped and 
supported me to get me to where I am today. 

Youthworks helped me with housing and food, hygiene kits when I needed support . 
They also gave me my first job doing what I love the most. They asked me to be on the 
youth advisory board. I think if they didn't do these things, I would not have seen my 
potential and how far I can go. I have seen Youthworks help a lot of my friends meet their 
goals. I think if Youthworks was not here there would be a lot of youth struggling to find 
their way and their purpose in life. 
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My name is Obadiah Pipeboy I am Native American enrol led with MHA, 20 years of age, and I l ive and go to 
school in Fargo. I also have son who is a year old .  

I come today because I l ive in a transitional housing un it provided by Youthworks. I first had contact with their 
street outreach program when they visited my school .  They provided snacks and dr inks wh ich struck up a conversation 
about what they do. I never thought I would intend to use their services unti l being homeless was real ity for me. Being 
homeless al l  began from having a tough relat ionship with my mom . We were always distant but never enem ies. She 
taught my l ittle brother how to drive and then bought h im a car .  This is a source of a lot of pain I feel everyday. Even 
with my own money and many attempts to be on better terms so I could obtain a license al l she said was no. Emotional 
outbreaks, poor money management, and addiction was fol lowed . 

Dur ing th is t ime my l itt le brother since b irth moved away, the mother of my chi ld (a four year relat ionship) told 
me I m ight not be the father, and my mom began asking for rent money. I was working during the summer but with 
winter com ing I just stopped and gave up. I never considered city transit because I thought the relationship with my 
mom would improve with time. But l iving with my mom by myself was unbearable. I take partial responsibi l ity because 
I d idn 't make it easy. I paid upfront about 4,000 dollars on my own appartment for 6 months. I also get disbursements 
checks from oil wel ls about 4 t imes a year a $1 ,000 each which I spent on food , bi l ls ,  and alcohol. After l iv ing alone for 
a few months it wasn't long t i l l  I began to isolate myself. I wou ld constantly be under the influence mostly on my own 
and on the weekends I would throw parties. I wou ld hard ly get any work done at school and that is if I even showed up. 
I was notified in  January that I wou ld half to either move at the end of the month or pay. With no money left I contacted 
Youthworks during the usual t ime they show up at school and asked for help .  All transitional housing un its were ful l  but 
they put me on a wait ing l ist and referred me to other options. One of wh ich was a homeless shelter which even the 
word d isgusted me. I had too much pride to accept the fact I was about to be homeless. 

I moved back to my moms after tel l ing her I would get a job. After about a month I sti l l  had no job and our 
relat ionship hasn't improved . So I moved to my uncles in Wisconsin where I spent another 6 months working with h im 
to save up money for a car  once I get back to Fargo. Living there I was completely sober, he was my boss so I never 
m issed a day of work, and I became apart of their fam ily. I had responsibi l it ies around the house and had alot of t ime 
with my cousin who influence my character to be somebody she can look up too. Th inking I might have a kid on the 
way an anti-social drunk wouldn 't suffice . I never sat at a table to eat d inner before. Nobody was on their phones so 
neither was I .  I d idn't even know there was a t ime for dinner; i ts at six. After working my first day my cousin asked me 
a question. To th is day I feel the same feel ings l ike i t  was yesterday. I couldn't breathe, my head overwhelmed 
scrambl ing for answers but none of them could come out. She asked, "how was your day?" after a brief moment of 
si lence I repl ied with a playful  "G reat, thank you for asking !". For 6 months I l ived l ike that and it was l ife changing.  
L iv ing there was not a permanent option for me because I just had a son THAT IS M I N E  to go back too . Once I d id ,  I 
got a job and starting paying my mom rent. Our relat ionship sti l l  d idn 't improve even after I thought I was a d i fferent 
person.  With no help with a l icense, I qu ickly fell back into add iction with my car money. I walked out on my job, and 
destroyed my moms office desk. She told me I had find a new place to stay so I moved out. The mother of my child 
took me in unti l  I could f ind a new place to stay because I wasn't emotional ly stable to be around our son either .  

A second attempt with Youthworks was a success . Never a t ime to be more gratefu l because they got me in  
r ight  before thanksg iving . My mom always said i t  was the wh ite mans hol iday and called i t  ' 'thanks-taking" but al l  I got 
was a home and spent the t ime eat ing with the staff and other youth .  I am now receiving help with my add iction and 
anger management. I have a job, i 'm back in school ,  and wi l l  be learn ing independent l iving ski l ls which al l  ensure a 
promising future for my son and I .  Thanks to Youthworks I have a new home and motivat ion beyond measure to be the 
person somebody l ike my six-year-old cousin can st i l l  look up too . Everybody has a story and thats mine. Without 
Youthworks I wou ldn't know the condit ion of my health and the futu re of my son cou ld've been at a severe disadvantage. 
I can 't wait to tell him the about the come up. Thank you for l isten ing and thank you for having me here. 
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My name i s  Renae Moch and  I am  the D i rector for B i sma rck-Bu r le igh Pu b l i c  Hea l th .  

I am  p rovid i ng written test imony on beha l f  of  the City of B i smarck and  the Go ld  Sta r  

Com mun ity Task  Force i n  support of SB  2263 . The Go ld  Sta r  Commun ity Task Force cons ists of 

Bu r le igh a nd  Morton Cou nty sta keholde rs worki ng to add ress behaviora l hea lth and  su bsta nce 

abuse issues i n  ou r commun ity. 

B i sma rck-Bu r le igh Pub l i c  Hea lth  col l a borated with loca l hosp ita ls  to comp lete a commun ity 

hea lth needs assessment in 2018.  The most d ramat ic i ncrease in concern from the 2015 to 

2018 assessment re l ates to menta l  hea lth a nd  su bstance abuse issues .  On a sca le  of 1 to 5 with 

5 be ing  cr it ica l attent ion n eeded ,  home lessness had a score of 4 .44 in 2018, com pared to 3 . 33  

i n  2015 .  

Menta l  Hea lth & Su bsta nce Abuse Prevention 
(Most dramatic increase in concern fro m  201 5 to 201 8 relates to mental health & substance abuse issues. ) 

20 18 C H NA 20 1 5  C H NA 

Druq Use & Abuse 4 . 5 3  3 . 75 

Ho me lessness 4 . 44 3 . 3 3  

Hous i ng  accepti n g  peop le  w ith chem ica l  4 . 3 3  N/A 
dependency,  menta l  hea lth , cri m i n a l  h i story, 
domestic v i o l ence issues 

Abuse of p rescri ptio n  d ruqs  4 . 27 4 . 1 3  

Alcoho l  use & a buse 4 . 1 9  3 . 54 

Su bsta nce use by youth 3 . 97 3 . 88 

Th rough the  Gold Sta r  Comm u n ity Task Force efforts, com mun ity gaps were identif ied a nd  
refl ected a n  u rgent need  for home less she lter i ng services i n  t he  B isma rck-Mandan-Bu r le igh
Morton a rea .  We cu rrent ly have an emergency she lter, but  there i s  no " low barr ier" she lter  
accepti ng i n d iv id ua l s  under  the  i nfl uence of substances wh ich leaves i n d ivi d ua l s  l i ke th i s  with 
no she lter i ng  options .  

The City of B i sma rck i s  u n i q ue .  We a re the ca p ita l  city and  have the State Pen itenti a ry and  a 

Bu r le igh-Morton County j a i l  g ivi ng  us  a d i s p roportionate n umber of adu lts at r isk for 
home lessness, yet we have fa r fewer resou rces tha n  othe r  commun it ies ou r s i ze .  
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Appropr iat ions  a l l ocated to home less she lters i n  North Da kota wou l d  provide our  com m u nity 
with a revenue  sou rce to ass ist in the  deve lopment of a low-barr ier  emergency home less 
she lter to ass ist i n d iv i dua l s  not served by othe r  she lter faci l it ies in ou r  a rea .  

BISMARCK/MANDAN SHELTER INVENTORY - FALL 2018 
NAME POPULATION SERVED LOCATION #of Beds/Units (Max Capacity) 

Abused Adult 38 emergency, 25 transitional housing, 
Resource Center Victims of domestic violence. Bismarck 7 permanent supportive housing 

Ruth Meiers Transitional living for individuals 
Hospitality House & families Bismarck 47 current beds and 77 under development 

19 for Single Female households with 
Welcome House Family Shelter Bismarck children 

Emergency shelter ages 12-17 & 
Youthworks transitional housing age 18-21 Bismarck 20 transitional, 5 emergency 

Emergency shelter for men, 
women and children. Does not Total beds = 68 

United Way - accept individuals under the Women and Children (8 beds, 8 overflow) 
Sunrise influence of substances. Bismarck Men (32 beds, 20 overflow) 

Tha n k  you for the  opportu n ity to express su pport fo r SB  2263 .  

Renae Moch,  M BA, FACM PE  
D i rector, B i sma rck-Bu r le igh Pub l i c  Hea lth  
City of B i sma rck 
701-355-1540 
rmoch@b i smarcknd .gov 
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To: Senator Judy Lee, Chairwoman of the Human Services 
Committee 

::;! ff"  (j. I 

From: Jena M. Gullo, Executive Director, Missouri Slope Areawide 
United Way 
Date : January 22, 20 1 9  
Re: Support of SB2263 Homeless Shelter Grants 

Thank you, Chairwoman and distinguished members of the 
committee, for the opportunity to submit testimony on behalf of the 
homeless population in our capital city of Bismarck, North Dakota. 

The homeless are often invisib le and forgotten throughout many of 
our North Dakota communities .  

This was quite evident at the start of last winter, when the only 
emergency homeless shelter in Bismarck closed their doors . There 
was no one to step in to avert this cri sis . Vulnerable people were left 
on the streets to die .  

Although out of our normal scope of services, United Way began 
meeting with and sheltering homeless men, women and children 
every night since October 27,  20 1 7 . If we had not done so, there ' s  
no doubt that lives would have been lost . I vividly recall desperate 
people coming in from the cold with their fingertips black from 
frostbite. 

Through the support of donors, volunteers, and honestly, through 
the grace of God, United Way opened a permanent homeless shelter 
for men, women and children on March 1 ,  20 1 8 . 

This past year, we have helped 762 unique homeless individuals and 
provided 1 5 ,7 1 6  nights of shelter. 

Over 70% of the clients we have served are from North Dakota. 
Their life and everything that they know is right here . 
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Unfortunateiy, United Way has oniy received $ 1 4,000 in state 
support to keep our shelter doors open. An emergency shelter is a 
vital and necessary component for individuals and families that do 
not have a safe alternative. It ' s  the first step to gaining stability and 
access to services . 

The complexities of homelessness are many, with the vast majority 
of our clients plagued with mental i llness, trauma, abuse, and 
addiction. Criminal records and poor credit follow those released 
from the state penitentiary, limiting affordable housing options and 
employment opportunities .  Unfortunately for many, j ail i s  not a 
deterrent, but often a way of survival. The practice of arrest and j ail 
that has caused a growing number of homeless people to be 
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is lacking quality services, other unnecessary expenses are regularly 
incurred, such as the over utilization of emergency rooms and law 
enforcement. 

There is widespread evidence of the negative impact of 
homelessness on children. Homeless children are far more likely to 
experience health, developmental, and behavioral problems than 
their housed peers . They are more likely to have poor attendance,  
fall behind in school, and perform worse on academic measures .  
Last school year, there were 450 homeless students in the Bismarck 
and Mandan Public Schools . 

We can change that. But without consistent and quality service 
delivery, the cycle of poverty will not be broken. 

Sustainable funding for effective homeless programs is needed. 
Investments need to be targeted. In some parts of North Dakota, 
functional and efficient systems need to be built . We 're up for the 
challenge . 
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In this last half of the year, 96 homeless individuals moved into 
permanent housing and 50  individuals moved into transitional 
housing. While this success on a shoestring budget is important, we 
know that with appropriate funding we could make even greater 
strides in transforming many more lives, and ultimately lowering the 
cost of homelessness in our state . 

Please j oin me in fighting for Melanie and her 8 year old son, 
Dayton, who escaped a violent home filled with drugs .  And Robert, 
who battles schizophrenia, and is to work every morning by 5 : 30am 
after walking over 2 miles .  He has difficulty managing his 
symptoms and holding down a job, so he primarily does day labor. 
And Amy, who was living in her car with her two children while 
working to support her family. She 'd  walk the kids across the street 
to get them ready for school in the bathroom at the gas station. 

Thank you for your support of SB2263 . Please don 't hesitate to 
contact me if I may be of further assistance. 

Jena M. Gullo 
Executive Director 
Missouri S lope Areawide United Way 
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Cha i rma n Ho l m be rg a nd mem bers of the Appropriat ion Com m ittee, my name is 

Kathy Hoga n .  I rep resent Distr ict 2 1 .  Th is  i s  a l so the home to ma ny i nd ivid ua l s 

who expe rie nce both i nte rm ittent a nd ch ron ic home lessness .  My D i str ict has  

home less services i n c l ud ing sou p k itche ns, d rop i n -cente rs, t ra n s it iona l hous ing as  

we l l  as  severa l she lte rs .  

P r io r  to  the fi n a nc ia l cr is is  of 2015, fu nd i ng  fo r  home less p rogra ms  had a been 

ava i l a b le i n  the Depa rtment of Commerce . Th is b i l l  s imp ly restores ha lf of the 

fu nd ing that was cut .  I t  is  the i nte nt that the bas ic  structu re fo r  th i s  fu nd i ng be 

conti nued as  it was p revious ly esta b l i shed . 

Cha i rma n Ho l mbe rg, there a re severa l peop le who wi l l  testify on  th i s  p rogra m a nd 

the needs of the home less popu lat ion i n  ND .  I wou ld  be more tha n wi l l i ng  to 

a nswer a ny q uest ions .  
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Testimony in Support of SB 2263 
Cody J. Schuler Executive Director, Fargo-Moorhead Coalition to End Homelessness 

Board of Directors, North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People 
North Dakota Senate Appropriations Committee 
February 1, 2019 
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ND Lobbyist #367 

Cha i rman  Ho lmberg and members of the Committee, my name is Cody Schu le r, Executive D i rector of 

the Fa rgo-Moorhead Coa l it ion to End Home lessness. I am a l so a member of the Boa rd of D i recto rs of 

the North  Dakota Coa l it ion for Homeless Peop le .  I spea k today i n  support of Senate B i l l  2263 concern ing 

fund ing of the North Da kota Home less G ra nt ( N DHG) .  

Over the  past three bienn ia, t he  North Dakota Home less G ra nt ( N DHG)  has provided vita l funds fo r 

service providers across our state addressing the issue of homelessness. These ded icated service 

providers a re not just meeting the immed iate needs of those i n  a n  emergency hous ing cr is is, they a re 

working to prevent and end long-term home lessness. However, the 80% reduction i n  funds has greatly 

impacted that work across the state . She lte rs rema in  at ca pacity a nd funds that prevent people from 

fa l l i ng i nto homelessness regu la rly run short .  I n  my commun ity a lone, over ha lf of those seek ing 

prevent ion assista nce a re routinely turned away d ue to lack of funds . 

Based on  the annua l  point in t ime count requ i red by the US Depa rtment of Housing and U rban 

Deve lopment ( HUD), the Wi lder  Su rvey of Homelessness, a nd ongoing emergency shelter data ,  i t  is  

est imated that upwards of 1,000 people experience homelessness on  a ny g iven n ight i n  the Fa rgo-West 

Fa rgo metro a rea .  This number inc l udes those who a re she ltered, u nshe ltered, and  who a re home less 

but "doubled up" with friends, fami ly, o r  acqua inta nces. (Th is is just a snapshot of my commun ity. Due 

to a shortage of outreach efforts across the state, counts i n  other regions of the state a re often 

inaccu rate, but reported shelter bed ut i l izat ion rema ins high statewide . )  I n  many cases emergency 

shelter is the on ly th ing keeping ind ivid ua l s  a nd fam i l ies from freezing to death du ring ou r  co ld winters. 

I ncreas ing NDHG fund ing is imperative for addressing homelessness i n  our state. Se rvices across the 

state a re u nderfunded and in  some, pa rt icu la rly rura l  a reas, there is a near to complete a bsence of 

services. Most services a re in  our u rba n centers, ch iefly i n  the eastern part of the state . Due to the lack 

of services across the state is common for the most affo rdab le th ing for a commun ity to do is provide 

tra nsportation for people experiencing home lessness to one of these u rba n centers where she lte rs a re 

a l ready fu l l ,  and resources stretched . 
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The unmet need of homeless programs can be demonstrated by past requests of NDHG funding. The 

table below shows the funding needs have remained twice the amount available 

Appl ications for NDHG Funded 
2013 $2,447,038 $1,250,000 
2014 $2,428,268 $750,000 
2015 $2,148,174 $750,000 
2016 $2,187,524 $750,000 
2017 $409,500 $150,000 
2018 $280,500 $150,000 

Maintaining and increasing homeless response systems such as shelter and prevention services and 

increasing affordable housing and supports for vulnerable populations is the only way to move beyond 

"band-aids" on the issue of homelessness and moving to actual ly reducing and ending long-term 

homelessness. NDHG is key to this larger picture of ending long-term homelessness-making 

homelessness rare, brief, and one-time for individuals and families in our state. 

NDHG does not just meet emergency needs in shelter but provides vital prevention dol lars. Preventing 

homelessness is more cost effective than providing shelter and takes less of a tol l on families. These 

prevention dol lars are crucial to the work of reducing and ending long-term homelessness. 

Funding homeless services and providing prevention dol lars is the smart way to do the right thing. 

Homelessness costs our communities a lot of money. People experiencing homelessness often make up 

less than 10% of the population but consume 50-60% of resources. HUD estimates that a person 

experiencing chronic homelessness can cost a community $30,000-50,000 a year. Properly funded 

housing solutions can drop those costs by half or more. The Housing Navigation program at Fargo's 

Presentation Partners in Housing is demonstrating that when people who have experienced chronic 

homelessness are housed with proper supports, not only do they find the human dignity that comes 

with having a place to cal l  home, there is a cost savings to the community at large. This program utilizes 

the Housing First model and has tracked the use of services of 20 participants before and after stable 

housing. In 2018 this program demonstrated nearly $320,000 of savings to our community. Admissions 

to detox services dropped by 92%. Ambulance rides were lowered by 88%, a savings of over $130,000 

alone. Emergency room use dropped by 71%, a savings of over $136,000. And nights in emergency 

• 

• 

shelter were reduced by 99%. This is one smal l  program investing in the lives of people and having a 
• 

Testimony on SB 2263 - Cody J. Schuler, FM Coalition to End Homelessness 2 
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profound impact on  those ind ivid ua ls and  on wider med ica l a nd she lter costs savi ngs. Imagine the 

impact that cou ld  be made with increased N DHG do l l a rs across the state. 

At a t ime when issues of add ict ion, recovery, and behaviora l  health a re on the r ise, it is importa nt to 

remember  that sta b le housing is key to addressing al l  these other concerns. When s leep ing i n  a ca r, on 

the street, or  even i n  emergency shelte r, one ca nnot address hea lth concerns, add ict ion, or  menta l 

hea lth issues. If we do not provide adequate home less services i n  our  state, i nvestment i n  addressing 

these other importa nt issues is lost for a popu lat ion desperately in  need of he lp .  

I n  c losi ng, I want  to acknowledge that N DHG funds don't just impact d i rect services and i nd ivid ua l  l ives. 

These funds a re a lso needed for proper data co l lect ion and report ing. Data is a key component i n  

preventing and end ing long-term home lessness. Without good data we  ca nnot address gaps i n  services 

or  ensure that we a re fund ing programs that have the best outcomes and a re making the greatest 

impact. NDHG ca n ensure that service providers a re prope rly resou rced so agency data qua l ity does not 

suffer. NDHG ca n a lso aid in  ensuring that the perpetua l ly u nderfunded, federa l ly mandated Home less 

Management I nformation System (HM IS) data base is properly function ing for state a nd federa l  

!j 3  

• report ing. 

• 

Whi le the ca uses of home lessness ca n ra nge from trauma such as job loss, domestic v io lence, a nd 

add ict ion issues, to d isa bi l it ies and hea lth cha l lenges, the on ly so l ut ion to homelessness is hous ing .  

NDHG provides crit ica l funds that not on ly he lp  those i n  cr is is  fi nd she lter but u lt imate ly connects 

peop le to fi nd or  rema in  in housing. Therefore, N DHG is not s imply aid or  programs, it is pa rt of the 

so l ut ion to end ing long-term homelessness i n  North Dakota . 

Testimony on SB 2263 - Cody J. Schuler, FM Coalition to End Homelessness 3 
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Domestic Vio lence Cris is Center* 
Minot Area Men's Winter Refuge 

YWCA 

Fam i ly Cris is She lter* 

TAT Vict im Services 
New Town 

Women's Act ion & 
Resou rce Center* 

Beulah 

Domestic Vio lence & 
Rape Crisis Center* 

Divide 

WI i i iams 

Mountrail  

McKenzie 

• 

McHenry 
Ward 

McLean 

Domestic Vio lence 
& Abuse Center* 

Grafton 

Cavalier 

Grand 
Nelson Forks 
Grand Forks 

Sherida Foster Grigg 
Mercer 

Oliver Burleigh K idder Stutsman 
Barnes Cass 

Logan LaMoure 

Sioux Emmons McIntosh Dickey Sargent 

• 

Commun ity Vio lence I ntervent ion Center* 
Northlands Rescue M ission 

Gladys Ray Shelter 

New Life Center 

Youthworks 

YWCA Cass Clay 

Safe She lter* 

Abused Adu lt Resou rce Center* 
United Way Homeless Shelter 

Welcome House, I nc Emergency Shelter i n  North Dakota *Domestic Violence Shelter 

Emergency Homeless Shelter 
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Dakota Prai rie Community Action 
Prai rie Heights 

• 

Minot Area Men's Winter Refuge 

Grand Forks Housing Authority 
Northlands Rescue Mission 

Prai rie Harvest Mental Health 
Red R iver Val ley Community Action 

Salvation Army 
YWCA 

Div ide 

WI ii iams 

•
Will iston 

Dunn 
Bi l l ings 

Golden Diddnso·n 

Val ley e Stark 

Abused Adult Resource Center 
AID, Inc 

Burleigh County Housing Authority 
CAP Region V I I  

Native American Development Center 
Salvation Army 

Youthworks 

St. Joseph's Social Care 

McHenry 

McLean 

Mercer 

Oliver 

Benson 

Wells  
Sherida 

Eddy 

Gran 
Nelson Forks 
Grand forks 

Foster Grigg teele Trail l  

Burleigh K idder Stutsman 
Barnes Cass 

Bismarck 

Logan 

Sioux Emmons McIntosh Dickey 

CARES 

Coordinated Assessment Referral Evaluation System 

North Dakota�s Homeless Response System 

• 

CAP of North Dakota 
(Supportive Services for Veteran Fami l ies) * 

Centre, Inc. 
Community Supervision-Cass Co. Sheriff 

Homeless Health 
Fargo HRA 

Fargo VA Health Care System* 
Fraser, LTD 

Gladys Ray Shelter 
New Life Center 

Presentation Partners in Housing 
Salvation Army 

SENDCAA 
Youthworks 

YWCA Cass Clay 

MOORHEAD/CLAY 

Churches United for the Homeless 

Clay County HRA 

Dorothy Day House of Hospital ity 

Lakeland Menta l Health Center 

Lakes & Prai ries CAP 

Moorhead Publ ic Hous ing 

Summit Gu idance 

*Statewidee Program 

Emergency Homeless Shelter 

Domestic Violence Shelter 
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$ l . 5  m i l l ion  fund for home less prevent ion 
and emergency she lter adm in iste red by the 
N o rth Da kota Department of Com merce in 
the 2 0 1 5-2 0 l 7 b ien n i u m .  

I n  2 0 1 6,  over $ 2 m i l l ion  i n  requests ca me 
to  the ND Department  of Com merce. 
$ 75 0,000 was ava i l ab le  and awa rded .  

Afte r near ly be ing e l im i nated in  t he  budget 
i n  the 2 0 1 7-20 1 9  b ien n i um ,  the leg is latu re 
appropriated $ 3 00,000 for the p rogra m .  

Twenty-nine homeless programs and 

domestic violence shelters received state 

grant funding in 2015-17, but the number 

of grant awards fell to eight in 2017 and 12 

in 2018, according to the Department of 

Commerce website. The dollar amount of 

the grants also decreased significantly. 

Bismarck Tribune - January 16. 2019 

If the N DHG is not increased back up to $ 1 .5 mil l ion homeless prevention and 
shelter services in North Dakota will continue to be negatively impacted. 

{There ore minimal state funds provided as port of on Emergency Solutions Grant federal match) 

1.  Cu rrent  fu nds  / $ 300,000} for ass ista nce a re not 
adequ ate a n d  reg u l a rly r un  out before the yea r ends .  

2. S he l ter  bed ut i l ization  has never gone be low 
90% d u ri ng  the two b ienn ia  the g rant  has been 
i n  existence .  M ost shelters hove been at or over 
capacity. 

3. Some com m u n it ies, such as Fargo, h ave needed 
to c reate overflow prog ra ms hosted at  c h u rches to 
address th is  consta nt need .  

4. M a ny agenc ies ut i l ize these  funds  as  fede ra l  m atch . 

''Agencies across the state have had to make those tough decisions about whether they're going 
to reduce the number of clients served or whether they 're going to reduce the number of services 

provided to those clients," 
-Mark Heinert. manager for homeless programs far Youthworks in Bismarck 

Number of  Total Beneficiaries 
�-

Total Nights of  Shelter Provided 

354 
0 

20 1 5  20 1 6  201 7 2 0 1 5 20 1 6  20 1 7 

Chart data provided by North Dakota Department of Commerce 



S NAPSHOT OF  PRO G RAMS THAT DEPEND ON THE NDHG 

• E igh t  p roviders of emergency she lte r fo r those 
exper ienc ing hous ing cr is is .  

• E ight p roviders of emergency she l te r  fo r women 
exper ienc ing home lessness due  to  domestic v io lence .  

• M o re than a dozen progra m s  provid ing  ass ista nce 
for p revent ing home lessness .  M a ny of these 
programs  a re c rit ica l i n  r u ra l  areas where emergency 
home less se rvices a re l im ited .  

• Fraser, I nc .  and  Youthworks (programs i n  youth 
homelessness ! .  Those experienc ing chron ic  
home lessness as  adu lts often had the i r  first i n stance 
of home lessness as youth . Add ress ing youth 
home lessness can b reak  cyc les and potentia l l y  
red uce home lessness long  term . 

• YWCA of Cass C lay provid ing  se rvices to women 
and  ch i l d ren ,  i nc l ud i ng  those experienc ing domestic 
vio lence .  

• N ew Life Center, serv ing men  i n  Fargo for 1 1  0 yea rs .  

• G ladys Ray She lter and  Vetera ns Drop-in Center, 
often serving the ha rdest to serve . 

• The Home less M anagement I nformation System 
( H M I S )  is N o rth Dakota 's  federa l ly mandated 
data base. H M I S  is a l ready u nder  funded and proper 
functiona l ity and  data in teg rity cou ld  be 
jeopard ized . Th i s  is concern i ng  becau se the 
awa rd of federa l  fu nds  a re dependent  upon  the data 
co l l ected in H M I S .  

• Supportive Se rvices for Vetera n Fa m i l ies  th rough  
Com m u n ity Action  Pa rtne rsh ip .  

S NAPSHOT STORY FROM YWCA IN FARGO 

A woman served in the program for three months o f  back rent seven years ago who reached out with a $ 1 , 5 00 
donation to the program in 2 0 1 8  because we helped her. Th is is her  story. 

"You  he l ped me a round  seven yea rs ago with th ree months of rent. I had fe l l  on ha rd t imes and the YWCA he lped 
me .  I p rom ised myse l f  and  the m a n  u psta i rs that  i f  I eve r got a chance to  g ive back to  the YWCA that  I wou l d .  Wel l  
recent ly m y  brother  passed away and  he was a " penny p incher" .  T h e  m in ute I fou n d  o u t  that I wou ld  be coming i n  
t o  s o m e  money I knew what I wa nted t o  do with it .  I knew that I wa nted t o  g ive back t o  t h e  YWCA for a l l  o f  the h e l p  
and  k indness they showed me .  You treated me with respect and d ign ity and  never j u d g e d  me .  Beca use o f  you r  he lp  
I was  ab le  to  stay i n  my apartment for a l l  of these yea rs and  I have a fu l l  t ime job and  a m  do ing rea l ly we l l .  I have 
never forgotten you and  I a lways keep the YWCA and its staff in my prayers.  Thank  you fo r ca ri ng about me . "  

• 

• 
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No rth Da kota Home less G ra nt 

# of Tota l Total N ights Provided 

Admin' Homeless Prevention' Rapid Rehousing' Essential Services' HMIS' Tota l Beneficiaries Shelter 

2015 $13,650.00 $125,200.00 $127,500.00 $450,000.00 $33,650.00 $750,000.00 7,546 59,769 

2016 $46,635.00 $451,841 .00 $384,866.00 $1, 183,833 .00 $120,349.00 $2,187,524.00 7,858 98,977 

2017 $0.00 $79,000.00 $21,000.00 

2018 $0.00 $69,000.00 $81,000.00 

* 2018 fund ing ends J une  30, 2019. Benefic ia ries a re based on 2017 fund i ng. 

'Admin :  Sa la ries for staff engaged i n  program admin i stration 

$0.00 $50,000.00 $150,000.00 354 

$0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 354* 

Homeless Prevention: To prevent an i nd iv idua l  or  househo ld from becoming homeless, and  movi ng i nto an emergency she lter or  an unshe ltered s ituat ion .  I nc ludes rental 

ass istance, ut i l i t ies i n  a rreas, moving costs, etc. 

Rapid Rehousing: To help homeless i nd iv idua l s  or househo lds trans it ion as qu ick ly as  possi b le  i nto permanent supportive hous i ng. I nc ludes rent deposits, renta l ass istance, ut i l ity deposts, etc. 

Essentia l  Services: I nc ludes renovation and  operat ion expenses for she lters as  wel l  a s  reimbursement for case management, chi ld ca re, educat ion and  emp loyement ass istance, outpat ient, and 

menta l  hea lth services provided to i nd iv idua l s  and fami l i es  who a re homeless. 

HMIS: Ha rdwa re, equ i pment, software costs ( l icense fees), staff sa la ries and  tra i n i ng  necessa ry to contr ibute data to the HM I S  des ignated by the North Dakota Coa l i t ion for Homeless People. 

0 

0* 

• 

# of Agencies 

Funded 

29 

29 

8 

12 
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Testimony from Erin Prochnow, CEO, YWCA Cass Clay 
North Dakota Senate Appropriations Committee 
February 1 ,  201 9 
SB 2263 

Introduction : 

Good morning Chairwoman Holmberg and members of the committee, my name is Erin 

Prochnow, CEO at YWCA Cass Clay. Our agency offers the largest Emergency Shelter 

serving women and children in the state of North Dakota and northwestern Minnesota. 

We have been providing services in our community for 1 1 2 years, spending the past 40 

years providing emergency shelter and housing services to women and thei r children 

escaping domestic violence and abusive situations. YWCA supports SB 2263 .  

Homeless Prevention :  

Mr. Chai rman, a man facing homelessness died two weeks ago i n  your community in 

the back end of h is pick-up truck that he was heating with a propane tank trying to stay 

warm from the elements. This is a death that I believe could have been prevented with 

the appropriate supports through NDHG . Today, I implore you to increase the funding 

level to $ 1 .5 m ill ion. This action was taken by the House Appropriations Subcommittee 

last week while discussing the Department of Commerce budget; they voted to restore 

the funding for NDHG to $ 1 .5 mill ion .  Today, I request you vote to do the same with SB 

2263 . We make this request because there is a demonstrated need in our state. 

YWCA supports a philosophy of empowerment, aiming to not only provide shelter to the 

homeless, but to prevent homelessness altogether. Homeless prevention initiatives 



• 

• 

• 

should be inclusive of a variety of supportive housing options and short-term assistance 

covering basic expenses l ike deposits, rent, and util ity payments . By helping with these 

needs, YWCA believes homelessness can prevented before it happens. And, it works! 

Prior NDHG Fund ing:  

In the last legislative session,  funding was reduced by 80% from the previous biennium 

to support NDHG . Today, YWCA Cass Clay is asking for your assistance in restoring 

this funding stream. 

fJ J_  

At YWCA we witnessed an 86% reduction in NDHG state funding between the 2015-

2016 and 2017-2018 biennium's ($102,150 vs $14 ,000) and as a result a 79% reduction 

in individuals (113 vs 24) served in the program. The people that need this assistance 

are struggling to get by and often l ive paycheck to paycheck. HPRP is a lifechanging 

and effective program that serves people through preventative efforts. 

Prevention is Life Changing: 

People l ike Kelly, who YWCA served seven years ago with three months of rental 

assistance. Kelly wrote a note of gratitude to YWCA last fall , seven years after receiving 

$1,500 in HPRP assistance. With Kelly's note was a donation for $1,500. The note read: 

"You helped me around seven years ago with three months of rent. I had fell on 

hard times and the YWCA helped me. I promised myself and the man upstairs 

that if I ever got a chance to give back to the YWCA that I would. Well recently 
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my brother passed away and he was a "penny pincher . "  The minute I found out 

that I would be coming in to some money I knew what I wanted to do with it . I 

knew that I wanted to give back to the YWCA for all of the help and kindness 

they showed me. You treated me with respect and dignity and never judged me. 

Because of your help I was able to stay in my apartment for all of these years 

and I have a fulltime job and am doing really well . I have never forgotten you and 

I always keep the YWCA and its staff in my prayers. Thank you for caring about 

me. "  Kelly, served by YWCA in 201 2  

As you can tell from Kelly's story, the HPRP program has proven results, preventing 

people from becoming homeless in the first place and often help ing women become 

rehoused as quickly as possible . In the 201 5-201 6 biennium, YWCA was able to serve 

1 1 3 women and ch ildren through the HPRP program. On average, famil ies received 

one and a half months of assistance, on average totaling $91 5 to each family to help 

with rent or a rental deposit. Of those served at that time, 87% were still maintaining 

their stable housing three months after receiving assistance. Again, the program is 

effective. 

This past August, YWCA helped a woman pay one month of rent. Her hours were cut at 

her place of employment. Once she learned th is, she was able to contact YWCA who 

paid one month of rent for $575 with the support of NDHG . This client has not asked for 

further assistance to date. Had she become homeless , her stay in emergency shelter 
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for one month at YWCA equates to $44/day times 30 days totaling $1,320. Not only is 

homeless prevention effective and the r ight thing to do, it is  economical . 

People must be a Priority: 

Our priorities as a state must be to care for the most vulnerable among us including 

women and their children escaping unthinkable circumstances . Without these programs, 

thousands of North Dakotans, i ncluding women and children who have been victims of 

violence will be homeless .  As the state's largest shelter serving women and children, we 

know this to be true, in 2018 we served 1,375 women and children and were at or 

above capacity 60% of the time. Many bel ieve homelessness an issue only facing urban 

communities , based on who we serve at YWCA I can tell you, women from every corner 

of North Dakota from Fargo all along 1-94 through Casselton, Tower City,  Jamestown 

and Bismarck and beyond to rural communities of Dunseith, Belcourt, Grafton and many 

more are served by YWCA. This is not an urban issue or a rural issue, this is a 

humanity issue. 

NDHG works and is  a preventative measure we can take to stop homelessness before it 

beg ins .  Please take action today. The more than 120 women and children being safely 

sheltered and housed by YWCA today, and hundreds of other North Dakotans facing 

homelessness across the state, are counting on you. Thank you . 
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Homeless Programs Manager, Youthworks 
Testimony in support of SB 2263 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
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My name is Mark Heinert, and I am here today to deliver testimony in support 

of SB 2263 .  I have been a licensed social worker in North Dakota for 28  years, serving 

runaway and homeless youth for the last 22 .  I am the Homeless Programs Manager 

at Youthworks, a private, non-profit, youth serving agency serving Runaway and 

Homeless Youth in North Dakota. I am also involved in North Dakota and West 

Central Minnesota's Coordinated Access Referral and Evaluation System (CARES) for 

• 
the homeless, serving as the past chair of the governing board. 

The North Dakota Homeless Grant (NDHG), which began in 20 13 ,  has provided 

funding to assist agencies in providing housing and support services for the homeless. 

The funding began with $2 million for the 2013  - 2015  biennium, then provided $ 1 .5 

million for the 2015  - 2017  biennium. This amount was reduced by 80% to $300,000 

in 2017 - 2019 .  Youthworks had utilized funding from NDHG to provide housing and 

support services to approximately 60 young adults (age 18 - 2 1) and their children 

annually from 2013  to 2017. An additional 80 - 100 youth received homeless 

prevention services and other supports . Unfortunately, in the 2017  - 2019  biennium, 

Youthworks did not receive any funds from NDHG to support this mission. 

Youthworks has a history of success raising funds from federal sources which 

• require local match. Without the support of the NDHG (or other local funds), 
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• Youthworks is in jeopardy of losing upwards of $500,000 in federal grant funds, 

which are dedicated to serving homeless youth. 

As homeless providers coordinate housing and services for the homeless, the 

most vulnerable in our population are served first. This includes the elderly, victims 

of domestic violence, trafficking victims, former foster youth, people with disabilities, 

and all children. In 2017, 36% of the homeless youth served by Youthworks are 

former foster youth. Additionally, 41 % of 19-year old former foster youth in ND 

report being homeless in the last two years . 

According to a 2015  Minnesota study by Foldes Consulting, LLC. an estimated 

$2 1 1,059 in lifetime savings results from enabling a youth experiencing or at risk of 

homelessness to transition to a productive and self-sufficient lifestyle. Success with 

• 
only 2 .7 percent of Runaway and Homeless Youth will offset the cost of all of the 

housing and transformative programs that were provided in 2011  in Minnesota. 

Supporting youth out of homelessness resulted in lower costs of crime, lower public 

expenditures on healthcare and public assistance, less funding for housing supports, 

and lower public costs for education. 

• 

I encourage you to consider the needs of the most vulnerable in our population 

first. The most cost-effective way of helping vulnerable homeless people is to provide 

supportive housing, which is what Youthworks and other agencies are using NDHG 

funds for. 

"On an annual basis it costs between $12 ,000 and $25,000 to 

place homeless people in supportive housing. In contrast, it 

costs about $3 5,000 to $150,000 for the person to remain 

r_J J.i  
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homeless. This is based on the cost of emergency room visits, 

police calls, emergency shelter, food, etc." 

- Former HUD Secretary Shaun Donavon - 2012  

Passing SB  2 263  i s  a good step towards dealing with the "big picture" o f  

homelessness i n  North Dakota. We must invest i n  providing emergency and 

supportive housing and supports, so that we can help people transition into longer 

term stability. It is the right thing to do both from a humanitarian perspective, but 

also from a fiscal perspective. I therefore urge this committee to recommend a "do 

pass" on SB 2263 for the amount of 1.5 million dollars . 

fJ j 
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Hi my name is David Schadegg, I currently l ive in the Youthworks housing 

program due to being homeless .  I am currently working at CHI St. Alexi us. I 'm 

currently back in school at BSC , I hope to complete the RN program. I enjoy coming 

home and spending time with my 2 month old daughter. It is really important that I 

follow through with school , so I can one day I have a great job to be able to provide 

for my daughter and make sure she has a bright future. I hope to be finished with 

school in the near future and still be working at the hospital . 

I have add and adhd , so it is really hard for me to concentrate. I really had to 

work super hard to make sure I could get stuff done . When I realized how difficult it 

was, I came to the realization that I had to get medication. So I had to make sure I 

went to the doctors to get medication to help me. I also  have severe anxiety so I get 

really anxious a lot of time. So it was really hard for me to get stuff done. I have 

honestly learned get help from the doctor was the best thing I have ever done . Now 

that I 'm back on my medication I have seen myself able  to concentrate more. I have 

not been as anxious and I have not had trouble  getting stuff done . 

I have been working with Youthworks since 2014 , when I was a troubled 

youth. Youthworks really helped me focus on getting a j ob and going back to school .  

They have also helped me change so  much as a person !  When I was younger I was 

bullied a lot , so I was constantly in the principals office . It didn't help that I lived in 
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the small town of turtle lake, ND. It was really clicky and was hard for me growing 

• 

• 

up. It was really difficult with all the problems I already was struggling with . I was 

going down a bad path constantly getting into fights and have the school involve 

local law enforcement. They were threatening me to have me sent to YCC . One day 

the law enforcement was called and thank god it wasn't the same officers . When 

they got there and talked with me , one of them had mentioned Youthworks and had 

taken me there. From that day they have done nothing but help me . They are always 

so kind and understanding. I think we should vote yes for the North Dakota 

Homeless Grant so that agencies l ike Youthworks can receive funding because they 

help our youth and young adults so much ! 
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• Good Morning Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, My name is Sherrice 

Roness and I would like to thank you for listening to my testimony today. I am the 

Homeless Liaison for the Bismarck Public School District and I'm in favor of this bill . 

• My current job is to locate and identify the students in ou r school district who are in 

transition or homeless and provide them services to ensure their education is adequate 

and stable. This is quite the challenge, when the families' residence is not adequate and 

stable. My job is working every day . . .  with these families . .  trying to help them find the 

basics of food and shelter. 

• This has become increasingly harder to do. One of the reasons is that we do not have a 

24 hour staffed Emergency Shelter available to those in need. I am speaking on behalf 

of the families, as that is what I specifically work with, but it does pertain to all ages of 

people in crisis. The current shelter being funded by United Way, does not allow 

occupants to be in the shelter during the day, due to lack of funding for staffing. This is 

ok for the students that attend school during the day during the school year, but there is 

no place for the parents, or younger siblings, to be other than finding public places to 

hang out at such as the mall, library, and the hospitals. Eventually, some of these 

businesses won't allow them anymore. Obviously with the recent temperatures, this was 
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a concern. Luck ily , U n ited Way and other programs in town stepped up and offered to 

house people during the day; but that is only temporary . 

• If you approve th is bill ,  the money that is allocated towards homeless shelter grants 

would assist i n  not only having staff 24-7 , but the services that could come from that are 

huge in helping these families try to get their own place or move towards a more 

permanent plan . Staff that could become case-managers and work with them during the 

day on getti ng jobs, applying for services, applying for housing options, etc. 

• This money could help assist in the shelter getting a landl ine, so the occupants can use 

that landline to put down for a phone number on their job applications. Currently there is 

not a phone there, so occupants cannot commun icate with the outside world for 

services if they do not have a cell phone of their own that has minutes. Which you can 

imagine, would make getti ng a job to try and better your situation almost impossible. 

• Another h uge barrier that this money could assist with is transportation . Through my 

program, I can provide transportation to students for their educational needs, but that 

does not help with parents needing to sign up  for services, go to i nterviews, continue 

drug/alcohol or mental health treatment, doctor's appointments, gett ing to food pantry's, 

and I could go on and on . Think of yourself and if you didn't have a car to get to work 

today and you had no money. You would probably find a friend to agree to take you ,  

but then that friend bails on you and now you have missed work , which now you are 

probably fired. Taxi 's cost money. CAT passes cost money and it is not the ideal 
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situation to have- to leave 2 hours before your appointment so you can get on and 

exchange buses to get to your destination ,  and then do it all over again on the way 

home. This money could provide taxi vouchers or even fund a "shuttle" that can assist 

with this need. 

• We, (as a community) , want to help promote these families to lift themselves back up 

and get out of temporary housi ng, but if we cannot give them that stability of taking care 

of the basics for their family du ring that crisis stage where there is a need for 

Emergency housing, we might as well hand them a sleeping bag and a bag of food and 

send them back out into the street . 

•• 
I want to leave you with this visual. As of today, in my program, I serve 398 students 

who are in transition or homeless. These socks represent those students, one pair for 

each student. This is right here, in our community, and this doesn't even touch the 

number of adults experiencing homelessness. 398 is also bigger than the population of 

Max, ND. 

• Thank you for your time 
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To : Senator Ray Holmberg, Chairman of the Senate Appropriations Committee 
From: Jena M. Gullo, Executive Director, Missouri Slope Areawide United Way 
Date : January 3 0, 20 1 9  
Re : Support of SB2263 Homeless Shelter Grants 

Thank you, Chairman and distinguished members of the committee, for the opportunity to submit 
testimony on behalf of the homeless population in our capital city of Bismarck, North Dakota. 

The homeless are often invisible and forgotten throughout many of our North Dakota communities. 

This was quite evident at the start of last winter, when the only emergency homeless shelter in 
Bismarck closed their doors. There was no one to step in to avert this crisis. Vulnerable people were 
left on the streets to die .  

Although out of our normal scope of services, United Way began meeting with and sheltering 
homeless men, women and children every night since October 27, 20 1 7 . If we had not done so, there ' s  
no doubt that lives would have been lost. I vividly recall desperate people coming in from the cold 
with their fingertips black from frostbite. 

Through the support of donors, volunteers, and honestly, through the grace of God, United Way 
opened a permanent homeless shelter in Bismarck for men, women and children on March 1 ,  20 1 8 . 

This past year, we have helped 762 unique homeless individuals and provided 1 5 ,7 1 6  nights of 
shelter. Over 70% of the clients we have served are from North Dakota. Their life and everything that 
they know is right here. Many homeless clients arrive to Bismarck due to lack of services in their 
hometown in rural North Dakota. 

Unfortunately, United Way has only received $ 1 4,000 in state support to keep our shelter doors open. 
At a cost of $27 per night, and an average of 50 men, women and children served each evening, the 
state funded approximately 1 1  nights of shelter this year. This statewide need to serve the most 
vulnerable population in our communities cannot be left up to the nonprofit sector alone. An 
emergency shelter is a vital and necessary component for individuals and families that do not have a 
safe alternative . It ' s  the first step to gaining stability and access to services . 

The complexities of homelessness are many, with the vast majority of our clients plagued with mental 
illness, trauma, abuse, and addiction. Criminal records and poor credit follow those released from the 
state penitentiary, limiting affordable housing options and employment opportunities. Unfortunately 
for many, j ai l  is not a deterrent, but often a way of survival . The practice of arrest and j ail that has 
caused a growing number of homeless people to be incarcerated is an expensive one.  When a 
community like Bismarck is lacking quality services, other unnecessary expenses are regularly 
incurred, such as the over utilization of emergency rooms and law enforcement. 

The 40% ND Tax Credit multiplies your impact. For many individuals, an investment of $5, 000 

L IVE U N IT ED to the MSA United Way Endowment Fund could cost as little as $1, 600 after tax sa vings. 



There is widespread evidence of the negative impact of homelessness on children. Homeless children 
are far more likely to experience health, developmental, and behavioral problems than their housed 
peers . They are more likely to have poor attendance, fall behind in school, and perform worse on 
academic measures. Last school year, there were 450 homeless students in the Bismarck and Mandan 
Public Schools .  

We can change that. But without consistent and quality service delivery, the cycle of poverty wil l  not 
be broken. 

Sustainable funding for effective homeless programs is needed. Investments need to be targeted. In 
some parts of North Dakota, functional and efficient systems need to be built. We're up for the 
challenge. 

In this last half of the year, 96 homeless individuals moved into permanent housing and 50 individuals 
moved into transitional housing. We've had far too many success stories of families and individuals 
now living independently, getting their children to school, and securing employment to bring before 
you today. While this success on a shoestring budget is important, we know that with appropriate 
funding we could make even greater strides in transforming many more lives, and ultimately lowering 
the cost of homelessness in our state. Tanya, a single mom of three children, came into our shelter as a 
fragile, hopeless and defeated woman. She is now strong, able to be a great mom, and thriving at a 
local university . 

Please join me in fighting for Melanie and her 8 year old son, Dayton, who escaped a violent home 
filled with drugs .  And Robert, who battles schizophrenia, and is to work every morning by 5 : 30am 
despite having to walk over 2 miles in the cold. And Amy, who was living in her car with her two 
children, while working to support her family. She 'd walk her kids across the street to get them ready 
for school in the bathroom at the gas station. She and her children are now in a stable apartment. She 
has a better j ob, and even health insurance for her family. 

Thank you for fighting for those who often don't have a voice through your support of SB2263 . Please 
don't  hesitate to contact me if I may be of further assistance. 

9� r() ��--
Jena M. Gullo 
Executive Director 
Missouri S lope Areawide United Way 
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My name is Lorraine Davis. I am the Founder and Executive Director of the Native American 
Development Center. I support SB�ecause I have experienced homelessness as a tribal member 
moving from the reservation to the Bismarck-Mandan area. I created the Native American Development 
Center to provide culturally responsive services and longer-term housing to tribal members whom are 
ready to transition into permanent housing. 

However, without sustainable emergency shelter, our tribal members will continue in a vicious cycle of 
homelessness. 

On the reservations there isn't enough housing, in the city the obstacles are different-such as-no 
credit score, no savings to pay for first month's rent and security deposit and the background checks. 
These are all common hinderances to those who are caught in a vicious cycle of homelessness. The 
NADC was created to address consumer finance education and counseling as well. We support the 
emergency shelter grant. 

Thank you, 

Lorraine Davis 
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House Appropriations Committee 

SB 2263 

March 5, 2019 

Senator Kathy Hogan 

Cha i rma n De l ze r  a nd membe rs of the Approp r iat ion Com m ittee, my n ame is 

Kathy Hoga n .  I rep resent D istr ict 2 1 .  Th is  i s  a l so the home to m a ny i nd ivid ua l s 

who expe r ie n ce both i nte rm ittent a nd ch ron ic home lessness .  My d i str ict has 

home less se rv ices i n c l ud i ng sou p kitchen s, d rop i n -cente rs, tra n s it iona l hous ing as  

we l l  a s  seve ra l s he lters .  Th is b i l l  s im p ly resto red the home less fu nd i ng that was 

red uced i n  the 2017 budget. 

I wou ld l i ke to tha n k the House App rop riat ions  com m ittee a nd the House for 

resto r ing  those fu nds i n  the Commerce budget. I u nde rsta nd why you wou ld ki l l  

th i s  b i l l  a s  be i ng  u n necessa ry . 

Home lessness i s  a l ife a nd death s ituat ion fo r  many peop le i n  No rth Da kota a nd 

these fu nd s with save l ives .  

Tha n k you aga i n , I wou ld be more th a n  wi l l i ng  to a nswer a ny q uest ions  . 

I 
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Testimony i n  Support of SB 2263 

Janelle Moos - Executive Director, CA WS North Dakota 

Interim Chairwoman, North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People 

Cody Schuler - Executive Director, Fargo-Moorhead Coalition to End Homelessness 

Board of Directors, North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People 

North Dakota House Appropriations Committee 

March 5, 2019 

Chairman Delzer and Members of the Committee: 
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My name is Janelle Moos, I am the Executive Director of CAWS North Dakota, and I also serve as the 

interim chair of the North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People. I come before you today to provide 

information, prepared with the help of the Fargo-Moorhead Coalition to End Homelessness, on the impact 

that homelessness has on the Citizens and communities of North Dakota, and to help illustrate why the 

state's appropriation of $1.SM is so critical to the work to prevent and end homelessness in North Dakota. 

I would like to thank this committee for voting to restore the funding level of the North Dakota Homeless 

Grant back to $1.SM as part of the budget for the Department of Commerce, which passed the House a 

few weeks ago. As several of you are aware, SB 2263 was introduced prior to those amendments being 

adopted to the Commerce Budget, and has the same aim, to restore the funding for the NDHG. So we 

come before you today to support the critical nature of these funds, and to ask you to remain committed 

to funding the NDHG at $1.SM this biennium, and ensure that either through the passage of SB 2263, or 

through the amendments to the Commerce Budget, that $1.SM be appropriated for the NDHG. 

Over the past three biennia, the North Dakota Homeless Grant (NDHG) has provided vital funds for service 

providers across our state addressing the issue of homelessness. These dedicated service providers are 

not just meeting the immediate needs of those in an emergency housing crisis, they are working to 

prevent and end long-term homelessness. However, the 80% reduction in funds has greatly impacted that 

work across the state. Shelters remain at capacity and funds that prevent people from falling into 

homelessness regularly run short. In my community alone, over half of those seeking prevention 

assistance are routinely turned away due to lack of funds. 

Based on the annual point in time count required by the US Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (H UD), the Wilder Survey of Homelessness, and ongoing emergency shelter data, it is 

estimated that upwards of 1,000 people experience homelessness on any given night in the Fargo-West 

Fargo metro area. This number includes those who are sheltered, unsheltered, and who are homeless but 

I 



"doubled up" with friends, family, or acquaintances. (This is just a snapshot of my community. Due to a 

shortage of outreach efforts across the state, counts in other regions of the state are often inaccurate, 

but reported shelter bed utilization remains high statewide.) In many cases emergency shelter is the only 

thing keeping individuals and families from freezing to death during our cold winters. 

Increasing NDHG funding is imperative for addressing homelessness in our state . Services across the state 

are underfunded and in some, particularly rural areas, there is a near to complete absence of services. 

Most services are in our urban centers, chiefly in the eastern part of the state. Due to the lack of services 

across the state is common for the most affordable thing for a community to do is provide transportation 

for people experiencing homelessness to one of these urban centers where shelters are already full, and 

resources stretched. 

The unmet need of homeless programs can be demonstrated by past requests of NDHG funding. The table 

below shows the funding needs have remained twice the amount available 

Appl ications for NDHG Funded 
2013 $2,447,038 $1,250,000 
2014 $2,428,268 $750,000 
2015 $2,148,174 $750,000 
2016 $2,187,524 $750,000 
2017 $409,500 $150,000 
2018 $280,500 $150,000 

Maintaining and increasing homeless response systems such as shelter and prevention services and 

increasing affordable housing and supports for vulnerable populations is the only way to move beyond 

"band-aids" on the issue of homelessness and moving to actually reducing and ending long-term 

homelessness. NDHG is key to this larger picture of ending long-term homelessness-making 

homelessness rare, brief, and one-time for individuals and families in our state . 

NDHG does not just meet emergency needs in shelter but provides vital prevention dollars. Preventing 

homelessness is more cost effective than providing shelter and takes less of a toll on families. These 

prevention dollars are crucial to the work of reducing and ending long-term homelessness. 

Funding homeless services and providing prevention dollars is the smart way to do the right thing. 

• 

• 

Homelessness costs our communities a lot of money. People experiencing homelessness often make up • 
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• less than 10% of the population but consume 50-60% of resources. HUD estimates that a person 

experiencing chronic homelessness can cost a community $30,000-50,000 a year. Properly funded housing 

solutions can drop those costs by half or more. The Housing Navigation program at Fargo's Presentation 

Partners in Housing is demonstrating that when people who have experienced chronic homelessness are 

housed with proper supports, not only do they find the human dignity that comes with having a place to 

call home, there is a cost savings to the community at large. This program utilizes the Housing First model 

and has tracked the use of services of 20 participants before and after stable housing. In 2018 this program 

demonstrated nearly $320,000 of savings to our community. Admissions to detox services dropped by 

92%. Ambulance rides were lowered by 88%, a savings of over $130,000 alone. Emergency room use 

dropped by 71%, a savings of over $136,000. And nights in emergency shelter were reduced by 99%. This 

is one small program investing in the lives of people and having a profound impact on those individuals 

and on wider medical and shelter costs savings. Imagine the impact that could be made with increased 

NDHG dollars across the state. 

At a time when issues of addiction, recovery, and behavioral health are on the rise, it is important to 

remember that stable housing is key to addressing all these other concerns. When sleeping in a car, on 

• the street, or even in emergency shelter, one cannot address health concerns, addiction, or mental health 

issues. If we do not provide adequate homeless services in our state, investment in addressing these other 

important issues is lost for a population desperately in need of help. 

In closing, I want to acknowledge that NDHG funds don't just impact direct services and individual lives. 

These funds are also needed for proper data collection and reporting. Data is a key component in 

preventing and ending long-term homelessness. Without good data we cannot address gaps in services 

or ensure that we are funding programs that have the best outcomes and are making the greatest impact. 

NDHG can ensure that service providers are properly resourced so agency data quality does not suffer. 

NDHG can also aid in ensuring that the perpetually underfunded, federally mandated Homeless 

Management Information System (HMIS) data base is properly functioning for state and federal reporting. 

While the causes of homelessness can range from trauma such as job loss, domestic violence, and 

addiction issues, to disabilities and health challenges, the only solution to homelessness is housing. NDHG 

provides critical funds that not only help those in crisis find shelter but ultimately connects people to find 

or remain in housing. Therefore, NDHG is not simply aid or programs, it is part of the solution to ending 

• long-term homelessness in North Dakota. 

Testimony on SB 2263 - Janelle Moos and Cody J. Schuler 3 



$ 1 .5 m i l l io n  fu n d  for home less prevent ion 
a n d  emergency she lter admin i stered by the 
North Da kota Depa rtment of Com merce in 
the 2 0 1 5-20 1 7 b ienn i um .  

I n  2 0 1 6, over $ 2 m i l l ion i n  req uests came 
to the N D  Depa rtment  of Com merce. 
$ 75 0,000 was ava i lab le  and awa rded.  

After nea rly being e l im i nated in  the budget 
i n  the 2 0 1 7-2 0 1 9  b ien n i um ,  the legis latu re 
a ppropriated $ 3 00,000 for the prog ra m .  

Twenty-nine homeless programs and 

domestic violence shelters received state 
grant funding in 2015-17, but the number 
of grant awards fell to eight in 2017 and 12 

in 2018, according to the Department of 

Commerce website. The dollar amount of 

the grants also decreased significantly. 

Bismarck Tribune - January 16, 2019 

' 
If the NDHG is  not increased back up to $ 1 .5 mi l l ion homeless prevention and 

shelter services in North Dakota wi l l  continue to be negatively impacted. 
(There are minimal state funds provided as part of an Emergency Solutions Grant federal  match) 

. Cu rrent  fu nds  ( $300,000) for assistance a re not 
adequate a n d  reg u l a r ly ru n out before the yea r ends .  

2. She l ter  bed ut i l ization  has  never gone below 
90% d u ri ng  the two b ienn ia  the g rant  has been 
in existence .  M ost she lters have been at or over 
capacity. 

3. Some com m u n ities, such as Fa rgo, have needed 
to create overflow prog rams  hosted at ch u rches to 
add ress th is  consta nt need . 

4. Many agencies uti l ize these fu nds  as federa l match .  

''Agencies across the state have had to make those tough decisions about whether they're 
going to reduce the number of clients served or whether they're going to reduce the 

number of services provided to those clients," 

-Mark Heinert. manager for homeless programs for Youthworks in Bismarck 

W.�t«�-�.mi� 
Number of  Total Beneficiaries 

354 

20 1 5  20 1 6  20 1 7  

Total Nights o f  Shelter Provided 

80,000 

60,000 

0 
0 

20 1 5  20 1 6  20 1 7  



SNAPSHOT OF  PROGRAMS THAT DEPEND ON THE NDHG 

• E igh t  p roviders o f  emergency she l te r  fo r those 
experienc ing  hous i ng  c ris i s .  

• E ight  p roviders of emergency she l te r  fo r wo men 
experienc ing  home lessness d u e  to  domestic v io lence .  

• More tha n  a dozen p rog ra m s  p rovid i ng  ass ista nce 
fo r p revent ing home lessness .  M a ny of these 
p rog ra m s  a re c rit ica l i n  ru ra l  a reas where emergency 
home less services a re l i m ited .  

• F raser, I nc .  a n d  Youthworks /programs  i n  you th 
homelessness) . Those experienc ing  c h ron ic  
home lessness as  a d u lts often had the i r  first i n sta nce 
of home lessness as youth . Add ressi ng  youth 
home lessness can b rea k cyc les a n d  potenti a l ly 
red u ce home lessness long te rm . 

• YWCA of Cass C lay p rovid i n g  services to women 
a n d  c h i l d ren ,  i n c l u d i n g  those experienc ing  domestic 
v io lence.  In 2 0 1 5  the YWCA served more women 
a n d  c h i l d re n  tha n  eve r befo re i n  the i r  40 yea r  
h i story. 

• N ew Life Cente r, servi ng  men in Fa rg o  for 1 1 0  yea rs .  

• G la dys Ray S h e lte r  and Vetera ns  D rop-i n Cente r, 
often se rvi ng  the h a rdest to se rve . 

• The Home less M a nagement  I nformat ion System 
( H M I S )  is N o rth Da kota 's federa l ly  m a n d ated 
database. H M I S  is  a l ready under  fu nded a n d  proper  
fu n ction a l ity and data i n teg rity cou l d  be 
jeopa rd ized . Th is  is  concern i n g  beca use the 
awa rd of federa l  fu nds  a re dependent  u pon the data 
co l lected i n  H M I S .  

• Su pportive Services fo r Vete ra n Fa m i l ies th ro u g h  
Com m u n ity Action  Pa rtnersh ip .  

SNAPSHOT STORY FROM YWCA IN FARGO • 
A woman served in th e program for th ree months  of back ren t  seven yea rs ago who reached o u t  with a $ 1 , 5 00 
don a tion to th e program in 2 0 1 8 because we helped her. Th is is her  story. 

"You he l ped me a ro u n d  seven yea rs ago with th ree months of rent. I had  fe l l  on h a rd ti mes a n d  the YWCA h e l ped 
me. I p ro m ised myse l f  and the man u psta i rs that  i f  I ever got a chance to g ive back to the YWCA that  I wou l d .  We l l  
recent ly m y  brother  passed away a n d  he  was a " pe n ny p incher" .  The m i n ute I fou n d  o u t  that I wou l d  b e  com i n g  i n  
to some money I knew what  I wa nted to do with it. I knew that I wa nted to g ive back to the YWCA for a l l  o f  the h e l p  
a n d  k ind ness they showed me .  You treated me with respect a n d  d ign ity a n d  never j udged me .  Beca use of you r  he lp  
I was a b l e  to  stay i n  my a p a rtment fo r a l l  of these yea rs a n d  I have a fu l l  ti me job a n d  a m  do ing  rea l ly  we l l .  I have 
n ever forgotten you a nd I a l ways keep  the YWCA a n d  its staff i n  my prayers .  Tha n k  you for ca ri ng  a bout  me . "  
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Mark Heinert 
Homeless Programs Manager, Youthworks 
Testimony in support of SB 2263  
House Appropriations Committee 

March 5 ,  2 0 1 9  

Chairman Delzer and Members o f  the Committee :  
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My name is Mark Heinert, and l am here today to deliver testimony in 

support of SB  2 263 .  I have been a licensed social worker in North Dakota for 28 

years, serving runaway and homeless youth for the last 22 .  I am the Homeless 

Programs Manager at Youthworks, a private, non-profit, youth serving agency 

serving Runaway and Homeless Youth in North Dakota. I am also involved in North 

Dakota and West Central Minnesota's Coordinated Access Referral and Evaluation 

System (CARES) for the homeless, serving as the past chair of the governing board . 

The North Dakota Homeless Grant (NDHG),  which began in 2 0 1 3 , has 

provided funding to assist agencies in providing housing and support services for 

the homeless .  The funding began with $2 mil l ion for the 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 5  biennium, 

then provided $1 . 5  million for the 2 0 1 5  - 2017  biennium. This amount was reduced 

by 80% to $300,000 in 2017  - 2019 .  Youthworks had utilized funding from NDHG to 

provide housing and support services to approximately 60 young adults (age 18  -

2 1) and their children annually from 2 0 1 3  to 2 0 1 7. An additional 80  - 100  youth 

received homeless prevention services and other supports . Unfortunately, in the 

2 0 1 7  - 2 0 19 biennium, Youthworks did not receive any funds from NDHG to 

support thi s  mission . 
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Youthworks has a history of success rais ing funds from federal sources which 

require local match. Without the support of the NDHG (or other local funds), 

Youthworks i s  in  j eopardy of losing upwards of $500 ,000 in federal grant funds, 

which are dedicated to serving homeless youth. 

As homeless providers coordinate housing and services for the homeless, the 

most vulnerable in our population are served first. This includes the elderly, victims 

of domestic violence, trafficking victims, former foster youth, people with 

disabilities, and all children. In 2 0 1 7, 36% of the homeless youth served by 

Youthworks are former foster youth. Additionally, 41 % of 19 -year old former foster 

youth in N D  report being homeless in the last two years. 

According to a 2015  Minnesota study by Foldes Consulting. LLC. an estimated 

$21 1 ,0 59  in l ifetime savings results from enabling a youth experiencing or at risk of 

homelessness to transition to a productive and self-sufficient l ifestyle. Success with 

only 2 .  7 percent of Runaway and Homeless Youth will offset the cost of all of the 

housing and transformative programs that were provided in 2 0 1 1  in Minnesota. 

Supporting youth out of homelessness resulted in lower costs of crime, lower public 

expenditures on healthcare and public assistance, less funding for housing supports, 

and lower public costs for education. 

I encourage you to consider the needs of the most vulnerable in our 

population first. The most cost-effective way of helping vulnerable homeless 

people i s  to provide supportive housing, which is  what Youthworks and other 

agencies are us ing NDHG funds for. 

"On an annual basis it costs between $12,00 0  and $25,000  to 
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place homeless people in supportive housing. In contrast, it 

costs about $3 5,000 to $150,000 for the person to remain 

homeless. This is based on the cost of emergency room 

visits, police calls, emergency shelter, food, etc." 

- Former HUD Secretary Shaun Donavon - 2 0 1 2  
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I am also submitting written testimony today on behalf of the YWCA, who is 

the state's largest emergency shelter serving women and children. Without 

programs l ike the YWCA, thousands of North Dakotans, including women and 

children who have been the victims of violence, will be homeless . In 2 0 18 the YWCA 

served 1,3 75  women and children and were at or above capacity 60% of the time. 

The YWCA's experience supports the effectiveness of homelessness prevention. In 

the 2 0 1 5 - 2 0 1 6  biennium, YWCA was able to serve 1 1 3  women and children through 

their homelessness prevention program. On average, families received one and a 

half months of  assistance, on average totaling $9 15  to each family to help with rent 

or a rental deposit. Of those served at that time, 87% were still maintaining their 

stable housing three months after receiving assistance. 

Both Youthworks and the YWCA's experience shows that funding the NDHG 

is a good step towards dealing with the "big picture" of homelessness in  North 

Dakota. We must invest in providing emergency and supportive housing and 

supports, so  that we can help people transition into longer term stability. It is the 

right thing to do both from a humanitarian perspective, but also from a fiscal 

perspective. I therefore urge this committee to recommend a "do pass" on SB 2263  

for the amount of  1 .5  million dollars . 
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Testimony from Erin  Prochnow, CEO, YWCA Cass Clay 
North Dakota House Appropriations Committee 
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Good morning Chaiman Delzer and members of the committee, my name is Erin 

Prochnow, CEO at YWCA Cass Clay. Our agency offers the largest Emergency Shelter 

serving women and children in the state of North Dakota and northwestern Minnesota. 

We have been providing services in our community for 112 years, spending the past 40 

years providing emergency shelter and housing services to women and their children 

escaping domestic violence and abusive situations. YWCA supports SB 2263 . 

Homeless Prevention : 

YWCA supports a philosophy of empowerment, aiming to not only provide shelter to the 

homeless, but to prevent homelessness altogether. Homeless prevention initiatives 

should be inclusive of a variety of supportive housing options and short-term assistance 

covering basic expenses like deposits, rent, and utility payments. By helping with these 

needs, YWCA believes homelessness can prevented before it happens. And, it works! 

Prior N DHG Fund ing: 

In the last legislative session, funding was reduced by 80% from the previous biennium 

to support NDHG. Today, YWCA Cass Clay is asking for your assistance in restoring 

this funding stream . 

I 
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At YWCA we witnessed an 86% reduction in NDHG state funding between the 2015-

2016 and 2017-2018 biennium's ($102,150 vs $14 ,000) and as a result a 79% reduction 

in individuals (113 vs 24) served in the program. The people that need this assistance 

are struggling to get by and often live paycheck to paycheck. HPRP is a lifechanging 

and effective program that serves people through preventative efforts. 

Prevention is Life Changing: 

People like Kelly , who YWCA served seven years ago with three months of rental 

assistance. Kelly wrote a note of gratitude to YWCA last fall , seven years after receiving 

$1,500 in HPRP assistance. With Kelly's note was a donation for $1,500. The note read: 

"You helped me around seven years ago with three months of rent. I had fell on 

hard times and the YWCA helped me. I promised myself and the man upstairs 

that if I ever got a chance to give back to the YWCA that I would. Well recently 

my brother passed away and he was a "penny pincher. "  The minute I found out 

that I would be coming in to some money I knew what I wanted to do with it . I 

knew that I wanted to give back to the YWCA for all of the help and kindness 

they showed me. You treated me with respect and dignity and never judged me. 

Because of your help I was able to stay in my apartment for all of these years 

and I have a fulltime job and am doing really well . I have never forgotten you and 

I always keep the YWCA and its staff in my prayers. Thank you for caring about 

me. "  Kelly , served by YWCA in 2012 

/)-#. .1/ 
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As you can tell from Kelly's story , the HPRP program has proven results, preventing 

people from becoming homeless in the first place and often helping women become 

rehoused as quickly as possible. In the 2015-2016 biennium, YWCA was able to serve 

113 women and children through the HPRP program. On average, families received 

one and a half months of assistance, on average totaling $915 to each family to help 

with rent or a rental deposit. Of those served at that time, 87% were still maintaining 

their stable housing three months after receiving assistance. Again , the program is 

effective. 

This past August, YWCA helped a woman pay one month of rent. Her hours were cut at 

her place of employment. Once she learned this, she was able to contact YWCA who 

paid one month of rent for $575 with the support of NDHG. This client has not asked for 

further assistance to date. Had she become homeless, her stay in emergency shelter 

for one month at YWCA equates to $44/day times 30 days totaling $1, 320. Not only is 

homeless prevention effective and the right thing to do, it is economical. 

People m ust be a Priority: 

Our priorities as a state must be to care for the most vulnerable among us including 

women and their children escaping unthinkable circumstances. Without these programs, 

thousands of North Dakotans, including women and children who have been victims of 

violence will be homeless. As the state's largest shelter serving women and children, we 

know this to be true, in 2018 we served 1,375 women and children and were at or 

above capacity 60% of the time. Many believe homelessness an issue only facing urban 
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communities, based on who we serve at YWCA I can tell you, women from every corner 

of North Dakota from Fargo all along 1 -94 through Casselton, Tower City , Jamestown 

and Bismarck and beyond to rural communities of Dunseith, Belcourt , Grafton and many 

more are served by YWCA. This is not an urban issue or a rural issue, this is a 

humanity issue. 

NDHG works and is a preventative measure we can take to stop homelessness before it 

begins. Please take action today. The more than 120 women and children being safely 

sheltered and housed by YWCA today, and hundreds of other North Dakotans facing 

homelessness across the state, are counting on you. Thank you . 

/}-If . .!/ 
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